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WHO WE ARE

T Urban Fedessionment Authorty (LRA) 1= S"’IJFI'.I\'.'II'E‘E naboral and usa |.'I|EITI|"I|; ana
CONSrvatoen authonty. LIRA'S mission 3 “to meka Bl'lﬂﬂl:l:l'ﬁ a great ¢y 10 hve, wark and
play n® We sirive 10 cresle a vibean] and sustainabis Ry of distincbon by planning ana
taciitating Snpapore’s physcal development in parinership win the comemuning

Tha LIRS s succassiuly transtommed Singapone imo one of the most veable ciizs in
dam theough judicious land usa panning end good uiban design. We adopt a Iong ferm
and comprebansive planning acproach in formulating stratego plans such as the Conceot
Fizn and the Master Flan, {0 guite the physical davelopmant o Sngapore in 8 sustainsble
mannes, Cur planrs gnd polcea: foous 0N BchByng 8 Dalanca Tahwaen aconomes prowtn
and a qualty king crvironment. As the consarvation authority, LIRA bas an internationaly
MCOgrsed CONSErvalion programme, having sicoessiully conserved not only single
bukdngs, butl antFe Satncis.

To turn #s plans end visona into reakty, UARA takes on 8 multi-faceted k. In addition
o cwr planning function, LIRA is alsa the main gaverrmant Bnd sales apard. Through
the saia af state and, wa altract and channal privabe capida imestment o deveop stas
o support aconomic &nd sociel developmeant. URA 13 also 1ha development egancy ior
Merina Hay, the rew city extemgion. To craate an sxciing cityscape, URA gz acively
prarmobas achitechure ard urban design excsllence

Dirpwirag an our sxnariancs inintegrated plenning snd urtban maragament. LIRA prosidas

consuftancy for overseas blateral profects and sharss owr urban planning axperance
fhrough profes=onal fraining programmas.

THE URA SPIRIT

Senice & Passion * Inlegrity ®* Hespect * Innovalon * [eamwork

UFRANEs & strong culiume of achieying work exceliance. Thie cufiure is anchored aon the URA,
SPIRIT - come valuss which dafine what we believa in. Thay guide our daily intaraciona in
the offios and with our service pariners and cusiomars

L.IA

RS - ‘n'n.ruun.



CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Tha vear 2008 markad e 35° enniversary of the Urben
Rodeveiopment Authority (LIFA], tho national ageroy esponsible
for planning and faciitating the physical develcpment of
Singapore. Cwer thia pericd. URA has haipsed fransformed tha
physcal envdranman into graat Iing, working and recrastional
spaces lor Singaporeans and Wiskors 10 enjoy.

Tra tranaformaton & achisved thiough ciose parnarship with
ha puitlic and private sactors. it was inthis apdt that te LIRA
cererated fs 35 year by organisEng a major coemmunity
ourrEach programme 1o excte the pubic with plarning propossals
frorn tha Maater Flan 2008, Tha progranms congleted of & roving
exhibition, rmed By Encearng Homae, b tha heartlancs and a
st ol rommenly s | am glad o mepcel IRhal o Bhan
200,000 poople receved the exhibition with much enthusinsm.

PLANNING FOR THE PEOPLE

Tha plessant plrysical anvironrmeant amownd us did not happen
by chance. Thraugh the persevenng efiort of tha LRA beam,
owr vigon of fuming Sngapore into & distinctive city stata
and ar endearing home for esenone s shoping up repidly
Wo wil continue to aothwly imoke tha public i our plamning
procass. Tha pubics wiews, Keas and Ingighis ane Ccriticel 1o
LIFA&’s Concept Plan 2011 Ravies, which will guide Sngapore's
physical ransfornaton over the need £0 o BD paars.

Bassiches I0cus poups disGussons, &n oning Liestie Sursgy
was also conducted o receie the views of Sihgapomesans,

Findings from the surveys indcated improved overall satisfaction
lrvela with cur quality offife, oswell as cur living, working and leisurs
ermvironmaents, Thia showed 1hat UR&S vanous plans end infiathees
ara headsd in the right direction. Thana wara also comments which
sef cut challengas N lhe coming years - ansas that could hass bean
CpNe DEILEr, SuCh 85 gIEaler molvement of TN DeopiEs N Eaping
their Iving envimamant, improvernant 1o the range of recrestional
actrtias avalabie and making our faclibes Mo sustanabla and
elniary-nendy.

Same surly mspondents also Tet thal e Sngapore physica
lancEcape was changing too guicky. URA has made every affon
to addmess such concems whaen the Consarvation Plan was driosn
ulr. While Dalanong the egcanomic reeds of the nation, LES has
also bean galhering suppat from slakehoidens and the commuaily
to achigve & sustanabile and meaningtul conBEeVERCN Drograrmmss,
Gonsideing our last pach of davisoprmand, it is no maan sl hal
the LIRA has gazetted mare than 7,000 buldngs In Sngapoea ior
conservation to date By retaining the collective social memories
of cur past thicugh thesa hermage markers, we leeve behind a
mesningful lagacy for our children and tha future generations.

Zoncant Pan 200 1 wil be draam up with tha obsactie Oof echiesing
BCONOMIG griwih, a.good qualty Iking emironment, and an inchehe
sociaty whare fe needs of vanioes seclors of the popuition wil ba
taxen cang of. In his respedcl, achigving & susiEnabll Singanons
that balarices growh with responzicls ervirenmental managecsant,
as wal as gying peope a stong sanse of Dalonging, wil be of
utmast impodance,

Tha decl=sons we make todsy wil heve e eignificant impect on
owr Ihes os wall as that of our fulwe generations, The isswes o
be examined are complex and may mole tede-ofls Datwesn
different chisctivas,

NEW LIFESTYLE AND RELREATIONAL
OPPORTUMITIES

Far sighted plans meds decades age are slowly coming to
frullion todeay. These inciude tha Marma Bay arai, whioh s fasl
bistafmitg an ssciling exlenson ta the Contial Busness Dt
| recall tha arxiaty wa fall when tha UHA decided 1o open up
Marina Bay for developrmant during the economid downium
Breught abaul By the SART apiclamic - just 1ake & leok 8l whal
the place has baen transformed into foday. Capitalisng an the
segthelically pleasing infastruciure In the srea. not only has a
riesw city skyline shaned up in Merina Bay, it iz alzo playing host
fo many exsiting avents, both imternatoral and local. Some firsts
in i francial year nodude e Aris Fest@Maring and ha SGEKE
Bl Charge:

2010 s @ rilestone year for Marng By with thir Gompletion ol
Fany OEnvelpmans - Re WMAanng By Sancs veoraed Hesor,
Marira Bay Financal Cantre, the wataerlroat promenade, and the
doukde helk: bridge. Sermplamenting this milastona @ a year-long
sonas of exciting evenls called the Manina Bay Invitations 2010,
where Sngaporeans, young and okd, are mvited o pardicipate
end axperience iha tranaformaticn for thermaelves. Marina Bay

hes been pianned as & destnaticn for all Singaporeans and
vigitore fo enjoy,

LIEA continues 10 undamske many enviranmental moroersant
prects to creates s pleaszent stroestacape for peckaatriang
wilile enfancng e denuly of vanows iecalilies on thea igland.
Besidents in Waoodlands ere anjoving the faciities at the nawly-
opaned Wondlands Watardrant whie residonts in Sglap Villaga
afe also enjoying saler and lusher walkways. Othar anfEncemeant
vearks on the cards imclude the Punggol end Labrador regians.

Tra scope and complecdty of cur workl hae grown reemancous by
ovar tha yaars. With 1he swuccess of maneging the karina Bay srea,
LIF& has row fakoan on the robe of championing tha fransformalion
of tha Singapom Rwer. Wa heva drawn wp tha framewark snd
plans which inclde 1he deselopment of soilvwars activities,
coordinated markstng and promotion and  lcensing  of
aotheties within Singapore Rvar LIRA will sleo spaprhead
place managemel eforg (0 precingls within (e oty cenim &
Cozrard Moad and Braz Basah Bugs, 1o ing more vlieancy
o thace arsas

CHANGE AT THE HELM

Az ol 1 August 2010, Mre Ghaong KHoan Hean hes stepped down
am Chiaf Executea Officer of the Authonty, | wish fo sepress my
sincers graftude and spprecation for ber contributions b LIRA in
the last six years. She has servad and led with distinction and we
fruly velug har commitment 1o tha organisafon, | would alao lke
iy ebeerid & wwaarm weicome B e Mg Lang who Ekes over al the
hedm. The Board koks forward to woring with Mr Mg Lang.

Tha et 35 yeara have shown that wa havs fulfiled ow strategic
initiedrves with a highly skiked and dedicaied work forge. This s
wity URA puts a kot of effort nto attracting and retanng he beast
peopk. We gre proud 1o be racognizad ag | leading emploger in
the fislds of employes relalions and people management, as wel
&5 the pramalion o Qualiiy work-ife,

With tha strorg suppart and collaboration of cur stakeholdens and
partners, LIRY, ooks sat for anclber exciing year abead, whare
wilt Wil Continug 10 um our plans inlo malty, anod stive 1D make
Sirgapors 4 greal iy,

Lgoun

Chan Heng Loon, Alan
Chairran



OUR BOARD MEMBERS

£ Mr Chan Heng Loon, Alan (Chalrman)

[iroamy | Decsmber 2008, apponied Ghaimesn snes | Apnl 2008

Chip! Exsutive Officer, Engapon Fass Holdings

Board Member, Srgapore Power Lid

Eeccrcd Mamier, Meafialon Prics Lid end MeckaCom T Holcings P Lid
Chakrman, 5P Poswarissets Lid

Board Member, T Weniunes P Lid

Chgirran. 2PH Magadines Mo Lid

Direchar, Buairass Ching

Baard Member, Casing Begulalony Authorty of Singepare (o 24 Juns 20104
Diripdias, Fipchimal i Il rualinsrabs of Pacicdics Pubibifns

Cheirman, Powssas Limbed

Eenand bgrcer, Openblal Fig L

Direcktor and Expoutse Commiiee Mombor, Workd Assooation ol Nossoapoes
Chairrean, Comporals Govemascs Courcl

Mambar, Pubhc Sandcn Commission (rom 6 Sapkembar #0110

Ish ke Chan Sul Him

rewrs 1 Agnl 200H|

Chakrman, 3P Arohingots e Lhd

Prezidant, Doard of Archiecta (1e:071 Des 20000
Beodrd Merber, [ELE0 laesiment Co P Ld

(® Mrs Cheong Koon Hean

[roemi 1 Apel 200 1o 371 Juby 20005

Ghigd Exgdulisnh Offices, Hoiging & Derspdopmant Boend frem 1 Auguest 3090
Chied Exeputten Cfficer, Urban Bedevwelopment Sothorty (to 37 Juby 2310
sy Sacratary [Spacisl Dol Miriss of halioaal Desloperan

Baard Mk, Matoral il Beasd

B Membe, JTC Corposation

Beard Mamber, Jumng Porl Me Lid

Board Truswea, Lirbsan Land rsdiue

fi

=

Pral Heng Chye Kiang
[traim 1 Al 20049]

Diean, Szhnnl of Design and Ervdronrmam, Mationad Liniersity of Singapos
Chalrman, frchiectural Hedtage Awad s Assessment Commites,

Lirbian Peciaweonmmant Suihodiy

Merried Ackeanry Boand, Cenim for Lveaiie Citee

ki Arthony Kang

Hrazm 4 Al 2034

Prasidan, Derlsu Singapom Me Lid

rruchuts Pasl, Prosiden|, Aussacmion of Accwsciisd Achhrnng Sganis,
Elnigapore

Dinscir, The 48 Limited

Courcil Mombey Acverising Stoncard Authorty ol Singapom

Bigard Weamiber, Audit Bunsau of Ciroualion Sngepsn

Ackizony CommiTien Mamber, 'Wisa KT Wea School of Communication £
Irfpmaon, Narvang Tecmaogesl nveeRy

Chaimman, Agven sing Wonogroin, Csaia Indusinas Clsne Snganors
VOO LI ROpT Tl Aanisy

Tregzurer & Churc] Mernbsss, Corbederaton of Asian Advertsng Agency
Assouiations

Mr Liang Eng Hwa
[tram 1 Al 2008]

MEnaging Dimcion, Treasuny & Markals, DES Bark Lod

Membe: ol Parfiarmant, Holand-Bukt Tmah Group Beoresentation Constbuancy

Achieor, Holand-Bukil Tiveh Orasseoots Taniation

Wi Chairman, Holand-Bukit Parjang Tewn Courcl

Dippty Chair=wan, Coverrmant Makamacbasy Cormritea e Frarss,
Traddi & Indrtsy

Meombay, Govermermani Farameniary Committes lor Mabonal Dessliopment B
Ertairai |

Ackdsor, Food Crinks B Akad Workaars Linkon

Agninnr, Hyi Arn Clar Amsnsigtion

1 M Mok Wi W

(e 1 Apel 3006}

Managing Dirchor, W Architeciz FiaLid

Board Member, Prosenvatan of Morumenis Board
Couri] Mambae Chinses Hertsog el

Craimran, Design Guicklines Wakar Comimbees,
Lirfriry Redesslopmen Auinly

Mr Mg Lang

[l 1 Sugest 20000

Chif Exgtsubon Offcer, LUrsan Riddraskapmanl Sutherity lees 1 Augual 20000
Chied Exeguthvy Officer, Malkono Forks Boerd [to 37 Juby 20290]

B bwrmb, Chal Sereoe College

Board Membe, PLUE

Buceirdl Pebrnibes Trogecal arne Scence insTiuts, Metiral Linkersity of Sngapos

# Mr Ong Chong Tes

iy A 2006

Cieputy Marageg Direcher (Ganlr Baraing), Monatany gty of Srganon
Flamber, Sasws Fund Trushan Boand, Blinkdy of ODelanoe

Crgimean, rvestmenl Commites, Ceniral Provicent Funcd Boamd e bene 20080
hmbor, INVEST Baoed of Trushoos, Mirising of Herra Atsi

Counc| Mombar, irefihio of Banking and Firance

Boars Memow, Singagons Land Auinoety 50 July 2008

Chsirran, Imastmen] Gommities, Sooapore Land Authashy [ia July 2005
Banarcl Wemde, S Ko Boon Ingiiute for Fnencsl Bosnomecs Adviaory Board

i) Wi Tan Chee Meng
[rorm © Apnl 2008
Senipr Courssl WongParinaehp LLP
Board Membar, Snganons Powsar Lid
Bl Member S0 Pomerfomets L 8o 30 Augost 2070
Bosrd Mambas Powsaras Lid do 31 Bugues 2000
Boand Membor, Natioral Councl of Spolal Senece Bo 20 Ul 2004)
Ceaaereir, EA Dabiral Foundalien
Crrped o, W0, Sanvicas PleLsd
Bosrd Member A Sainis Home
Erinan Mermies, 5P (Ausiraial Assels Py LD T 1 Sapleniber 2010

i Dr Teh Kok Peng
from 1 Aprl 2004
Pasadant, G5 Spacial nveaiments Poa Lid
Mombar, Trimtoral Commission
R Misrisas China Bhamatioral Capitad O fpdmtsn
by Giesarming Dead, Loes Fonn W Sieheal ol Publa Policy
Member, Board of Grssmment of Singapore nvestment Conporetion

i} Mir Lional Yao Hung Tong
Iiram 1 Agnl 2]
Chial Exacuiten Oficer & Daan, Chil Sanice Cobagh
Doty Seordary (Dovsiopment]. Puble Servics Division,
Péma Minsters Onca
Bloard Momber, Jucng Port Ple L
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ADVISORY COMMITTEES

1As at T August 2010)

CONSERVATION ADVISORY PANEL
This panal givas inputs on bult hertage proposals put up by URA, and proposss buildings for LURA to study
for possible conservation. It also promotes greater public sducation and understanding of our gazetted buitt

heritage.

CHAIRKAN

Mir Richard Eu Yee Ming [Fom 0 Jure 20000
Cenup CED

Eu ¥an Sang imamational Lio

Dy James Khoo fo 30 Moy 2010
Senior Consulent
T Aol KA SLrgery P Lo

MEMBERS>

M Eahsdli Bin Abdkil Rafimsn (PEMY from 1 bune 2010
Charman

Sagsn Soum Maay Acthaty Exscytus Comimilles

Dir Zoo Boon Suan Loy ha 31 May 20110
Priecipal

Angican Hgh Schoo

M Chan Yaw Woal fom 1 June 20100
Prircipal
Evirgrisin Saoordany Sehaol

Ma Bl Gheew ifrorn 1 Jurss 2010)
Founder anid resiceni
T Siree (3] Fra i

Mz Claire Chizng (0 31 May 2010)
Managira Decior,
Baryan Tree Galery Srgepors Pia L

Mg Dimna Chsa from 1 June 2010
Enacalel Tour Coned e
Saciety of Tour Suides

Mr Richard Eu Yee Ming [iz 21 May 2000
Grgup CED
Eu Y Sang irrismaticnal Lin

M= Gaoh Sin Hwes
Nz Edibor
Lianke Zachan

Assoc Prof Bhirlena Huang Bwae Lian (Fom 1 Jure 2000)

Departrnant of Gecgraphy
Hatianal Unkwrsity af Sngapone

Mr Ashwinkumar s/ Kantilal (fom 7 Juna 20000
Prasiden

Sirgancra Institsie al Arckiincls
Birs Koh-Lim Wan Gin
Direciar

Kappsal Land Limited

Mr Michael Kal
Chigf FExpouriren Officor

“aliordl Hentags Baed

Praf Lily Keng Las Loa fa 31 May 3010]
Wice-Presdonl LUnkworsty & Glolbal Bolatons) & Dimclor,
A Research natilubs, Malonal Uvivensdy of Sngapoos

M Evelyr Lawd [rom 1 Juna 20109
Genera Managor
‘Ecape P Lo

Mir Ler Seng Ann

e Dirschor J0onearegltion B Denslppment Sandcasi
Consarvation & Lirban Design Groun,

Ui Redesednprrsnt Aoty

Mir Loh Lik Peang froem 1 Jung 3010
Jirector
W WO Hokdimgs Ple L

M Sabrina Long

Hpad of Ceparrnenl, 10 Desgn
Sanyang Aeedomy of Fing Ars

Mir Maohamed Muzarmimrd bin Monamsd
Lavwyer & Wice-Chainman
SHECHDE, LOMImUniTy' Laanirp MAanagaman Cmimiies

Mir Ng Chao Seng
Wernber, Managemerl Commilles,
Soal Estale Davelopars’ Assodation of Singapom

Mir Rokin Mg Kian Tiong (o 27 Sy 2010
e iahe Pasl Presican
Giyean Oparalora’ Association

Mir Tad Las Siang (e 31 Bay 20710
mimediate Past Presdent
Singapong Instiung of AnchingCrs.

Dv Ensaw Thomas [lo 31 Way 2000)
Sormrer Sanior ConauRant (Aneasiread) Fedn

Mir Wiea Boon Kim (from 1 June 2010
D
Ciycab Doeralors’ Asspcation

Mz Wa Mai Lan
Dinccior
L & 'Wo Architocts P Lid

DESIGN GUIDELINES WAIVER COMMITTEE

This committes considers and advises URA on whether appsals for waivers from URAS wrban design
guidelines and standard developmant control requirameants can be supported. it considars how the
biuildings will enhance cur urban landscape and skding in waheng some of these guideinas for Innovative
and gquality building designs.

CHAIRMAMN
BAF MGk W Wl Mr Look Boon Ges
Managing Derecior Privcipal _
W Architactn P Lbd Leoks Archifests Pe Lid
MEMBERS A Tan Bhas Yan
M Aslveimguimar 550 Kamilal Emnicr Wica Prasidant [Buiding
Frizsignn CPG Consulants Pea Ld
Sngapo nalibuta ol Architecie

s Yap Mong Lin
Mdm Fun Siew Leng Priraosl
Group Director fUrban Fanning & Deaigr, ¥ap Archtects
Corsaraton & Lrban Desion Group,
Lirinan Rsclraiopenant aubority

DESIGN ADVISORY COMMITTEE

This commdtee reviews and provices feedback on URAS urban design and waterbodies design guidalinas,
advises on local best practices and industry trends for urban dasign, building and architscture; and identifies
ways 1o ancourage and promate innovative architecture and wrban design in Singapons.

CHAIRMAN
BAr Chan Sul Him M Donald Han
Chrairman Aagiorsl Managing Direciar
OF Aschiteots P Ld Cushman £ Wamefiald Singapora Pio Ltd
MEMBERS Mr Richard Hassell
Mr Ghan Soo Khian DB
Founcing Prircipal WOHS Desons Pia Lid
500 Aechitpots Pe Lid

MIr Lisem ‘Wea Sin
Mir &nthany Chia Chiad Operating Omcer
Daputy Ceneral Maneger, Design & Projects LCK, Groug Lid
City Dewpdoprmonts Lid

Br Miak Wias Wad
Mr Ghing Choe Beow Managing Dimcior
Exaculiv Dingcior W Architacis Pua Lid
Wirg TalLand Fip L

Mr Banson Puah
Micm Fun Siew Leng Chia Excouthoe Oficer
Group Drector iUrbas Planning & Desian), Tha Eaplarssda Co Lig

Corsenaton and Urban Design Groun,
Lrkzany Fadinniopenas Aubdrity
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ORGANISATION STRUCTURE ~ AUTHORITY

Ghalrman

Deputy Direcior (internal Audit) Chan Heng Loon, Alan

1

Urbon Design Flans & Corsarvation Ploms
& Drrwsbcgnrannt of Lriean decsign pling = Geninal Aress planeng = Caoraanaton plannng

Dsvelopmaent Co-ordination

& Prarning, faclitation ard imgemenlotion of infrasinaciuel, emdnnrmenial Fpean
and buiding peojects for ssscied oreas

Davelopmeni Agendcy, Marina Bay

& Euarnta anol scfiilon pogromming -« Markaating ond plore monagemant
Architechine & UvDon Design Excalience

= Aainng puble swersress of good archilssies and wban desion

Development Control Group

Group Director
Han Yong Hoe

Davalopmend Facilitalion

& Peppecizang of dersalopiment aoohicationa

= Erforcomant o plonnieg regulotions te sofeguard the bang ermereamand
& Fliesien oF planring poksias and guicksnes 10 Ingilote Dusnesaas

= Sola af plarning recards and legal esquistion

= Mreperty marked mzsarch and rformation
Cortrofier of Housing
 lopaia P singg clossaiopens keanos

= Py FUss O JealoDees i e =i O usoimpeened
poperies

Car Porks Managemant
= Provinion ord monogoment of pubie parking focitio

Audit Committes
Yang Séew Liang
[
Czhied Fxsradive Offines
M Mg Lang (frorm 1 August 2010)
e Cheong Koon Hean [to 31 July 2010)
Chief Planner & | Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Deputy Chief Executive Officer (Planning) {URA International & Corporste Developmeant]
Lim Eng Hwea Tan Song Leng —
Physical Planning Group
Sanior Advisor
Group Director (Strategio Planning) Group Director (Physieal Planning) Chay Chan Pong
Richard Hoo Hwang Yu-Ming
Corncept Plan f Master Plan
& i of Concapt Flon sy 10 years ond of Master Flan evary e yams
s Stotagac:, keng-tanmn bt s planning aned Bl aica lanel ma planning Land Sales & Adminisiration Group URA International Grougp
= Fommuation of as ho raalie VEHONE D
ion of atrateges plarring Di - Group .
Conservation & Urban Design Group Marc Boay Wong Kal Yeng
Group Director Group Dinsctor Group Director Sale of Sies Provide Long Use PMannng Conaullanay
(Consenvation & [Urban Planning & Design) (Architecture & Urban = Flarning of Gevemment Land Sales: Programms e T e T S,
Development Services) Fun Siew Lang Duesign Exoelleno) * Sk of Shabe land, &5 agent for e Cowemiment e, Has S e SR
Ler Seng Arn Mg Lys Hock Fenl Estate Information ;

aaperansa 0y rmarsgerment and infegratad planning

Corporate Devedo pment Group

Group Director & Board Secretary —
Les Kwang Wang

Organisational Deyslopmant
& Erem i LI, resvoeltd rederainl

= Desvrlop UAA indo mmhﬂ:ﬂmmﬁﬂﬂhﬂt

* Provmicn of Boord ond manapement ssorstonol suppord
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Tha URA Board and Management hava put in place a framework to ensure adherancs 1o good corporate

OVErNance practices.

LIRA BOARD

Tre LIRA ACt provides Tor URA 1o heve B Ghalrmen and
up to 12 other Board members. The Board members
are individuats from both the public and private sechbars.
Haiing from wide-ranging flekds of architecture, media,
fnance, academia and goverrement, the members provide
complementary expertise and depth of axpenence to the
Board. Cthar than URA GEOQ, wha iz aleo 8 Board mamber,
he st ara NoN-BXacutive mambers.

STAFF REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Siaff Roview Committes consists of LIRS Charman,
CED and one other Board mamber, [§ revies and approves
the mecrtmant and promotion of officers into and within
superscale graces.

FINANCGE & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
The Finance & Imestmant Committes iz cheired by the
URA Chairman and includes theea other Board members
and ona non-Board member. The Committes reviaws and
recommends policies on the investmert of surpius Tunds
tor the Board's or Minister's approval as well as considers
and approvea investment guidelinea in na with policies
as approved by the Board., Tha Commillae raviews 1he
appointment of fund managera, custodians, end invastrmant
consultants and related sardce providers. L alza rewenns
the annual budgat for the Board's andorsamant,

ALIDIT COMMITTEE

The Audt Committes (AC] & chared Dy 8 non-executie
Board member and imcludes three other Board membere.
Mg main functon of the AL 15 t0 3381 the Board In
dizcharging it= etatutory and oversight responsibilties. &
rmeals with URAS intarnal and exlermal avditors 1o raviaw
their audit plans, chesrations, and the annual sudibed
fnancil statemeniz. It also reviews, with the intermal and
externgl auditors, the results of their evaluation of LIRAR
internal cortral systems.

{1 April 2009 1o 31 March 2010)

STAFF REVIEW COMMITTEE

Chairman
Wr Ghan Heng Loon, Alan

Membears

hrs Cheong Koon Hean
bir Lioneal Yeo

FINANCE &
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chairman
Mr Chan Heng Looan, Alan

Membears

Mrz Chaong Koon Hean

brs Chin Ean Wah

(Gl Expculive Dicar, Wiser Addel Managases]
Mir Liang Eng Hwa

kr Ong Chong Tea

Dr Teh Kok Pang

ALIDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman
Mr Liang Eng Hwa

Members

br Chan Sul Him

Mirs Cheong Koon Hean
b Tan Ches Meng

HISK MANAGEMENT PRACTICES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

MNTERMAL CONTROL FRAMBEWOHR

IJRAE internal confrol Tramewors ains to ensure tha
gazates are propery safeguarded, accounting syatams
and contralz are sound and affective, financial information
iz relable and key computensed systems are adequately
A fo minenese our risks.

These abjeciivas are achieved through:

Managament's emphasiz on the mportance of good
governance and an organisational cultura that is
conscious of the need for internal controd and rigk
MANSgement;

An organisetion structure with clear definiticn of
responsibiity and reporting at different levels of the
organisation;

Eafablishied comrmumication channal through regular
staff seminars, =iaff circulars, orentstion briefings
and provision of comprehensive information in URAS
intranet to educata staff on internal controls and good
govarnance;

A Financial Operations Manual, which sats out the
internal contred and financial policies, procedures and
financial authonty relating 1o all key operations of URA,;

Cangiul sefaction and daployment of stafl, with raguiar
reniews to ansure there iz approgriete segragation of
dutiee and that parscrnel are not sseigned conflicting
respongniilies;

Independent internal and external auditing funclions,;

Adoption of Singapors Government Sacunity Instruciions
faor the Hamdling and Custody of Classilied Dacuments
and Governrmant Instrection Manual on Iinformation
Tachmology (o ansure proper use and safeguarding of
UHA® information;

Cloza monitaring of URA's financial risk exposune and
IMmpEmnEnting measunes 10 MiNmIise sk and

Maonitoring of manthly snd quarery mepoting  of
finangial ard cporational pedormance af kg activilios
by Maragernent and the: Board,

NTERMAL AND EXTERNAL AUDIT
FLUNGTIONS

UAMAs Inbemal Awdit Secton conducts audils and revies
on URAS business functions to provide assurance o the

Baard that mtamal conbrols ars adeguats and sfhective in
all key fmancial and cperationgl systems and processes,
Tha scaps of the Intamal Audit functian ancompasseas:

Perfoming enterprise-wida risk assessments and review
af nsk management prachices:

Conducting financial and operational audits;

Conducting IT securily awdits on key computerised
svstams and retworks; and

Performing chacks on compliance  with  statutory
reUirETErlE, regulations and standands,

The Interral Audit Section reports direclly to the Chairman
of the Board and e Audit Gommittes, | furnishes
Managemant with audit cheseealions, analyses, appraisals
and recommerdations on areas for improvement and
morifors the follow-up actions.

Dedoitta B Towche was appontad by the Minister for Mational
Devaloprment in consiatian wih the Awditor-Genaral for
e audit of URAS Fnancial Statemants. Adging rom he
audit, Delnitta & Taucha raports to the Aud® Commities
itz findingz on sgnficant audit, accounting and intamal
control Bsues, and also recommends possitle ways in
which tha systam and procodunes can ba improved.

BUSINESS AND ETHICAL CONDUCT

All sbaff of LIEA am bound by LIRAS tarms and conditiona
of sardce 1o maintd@n & mgh standard of business and
athical conduct. In fhe course of their official duties, thay
are obliged not to imkole themaehes in mattars whare a
conflict of interest may anise and are to declare the stuation
io thar supervisorn Thew are also colged ko comply with
aslablshed guiddines perlaning o the acoeplance of
gifts and invitations fom contractors, suppliers, clents,
customers, developers and any member of the public,

In addition, al staff members ane subject to provision of
fha Official Secrets Aot and the Shaluiony Bodies And
Govarnment Campanies (Protection OF Secrecy] Act
They are required to zign a declacstion upon recouitmeant
1o acknowledge his provison, and are ermendedd o his
pravision when thay leave URA's service.

URA has also pul in place a Fraud Policy Statement to
strengthen ifs businass and ethical conduct.
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URA — PLANNEHR, SHAFPER, MOVER

2009 marked UR&s 35 years of shaping Sngapore. Cwer the st
35 yeara, LIRA hoe expancad ite inftal focue on the reganaation
ol Singapom's Cenirel A&rea in Te 19708, The URA foday i@
Sirgamor's nafional Bnd use plarming and consareation autharty
it plans and facines e physical oeslepment of Shgapom 0 a
hiodstc manner.

Lgmirat A backdarop of incraesing gobeisation, fsing aspinations
O SNEAPrEans 107 8 Daler quaty ol e &g compeElnon
among chties, LRA calehbrated itz 35" arniersmy with a majr
punliz oulreach programime, URA concebeed and rolled out a "MWy
Endearing Home" roving estibeton with e euppart of the private
and pubtlic sestars, The reving exhibion ravaled Lo eighl pepular
shopping mals n ine heanianss sEand-snick, between Way and
August 2000, Besides encoureging residanis bo redscover thair
letand city-ptaba, e eshioition siso gewe them an coporiunity
2 learm more about the Master Plan 2008, and in particular, the
upcoming pene for their home and neighbourhoods and how
hese would enhanca Meir gualty of lie.

Crwer 200000 peopla vished the My Endeerng Home exnibition.
In conjunciion wih the eshiilion, aerrmuniy foure Tor about 2000
parficiants were oroarised 0 erebia Sngaponars 10 apetnos
wanous  lbisue dastnations amond  the Bbnd  We  scehed
overwhneiming postve iescioeck from gressools eades and membes
of the puaks, manmy of whom wers delghied o hava mdiscossed
places in Singapors that thay had teken for granted,

LEE narmonands DUnng o0 el nianniggi BSes: fo rednsign CIsnerover

LURA aiso organssed an inaugural wian planning competibon cum
warkshog for etudents. The Chalenge for the Bult Ervinonrment
jolherwise known &s CUGE) soughl to creale more awanranass
of Srgapones Dull eraronment in Thase SUetants, &5 wll as o
strengthen their sense of belongng and closanass 1o this placs
wa Gall home. some 100 umicr oolege and pahiechnic stucaens
spent thair school helidays baing ntroduced 1o planning princples
@nd processes na resl and fun way,

PLANNING A VISION
- THE CORNCEPT PLAN 2011 REVIEW

URA commenced tha Corcept Plan 2001 Fevess in GJuly
2009, The Concept Plan = a strategic plan which wil guids the
desalopment of Bnd and infrastusture in Singapone oear the nest
&0 1o 50 wasrs 10 enaure BUstEnabE growth, The Feview B 8 mej
ExafcER Fvohing many Mnistias and agarcies.  The Conoant
Plan ks resiewed avery 10 vears 1o keep pace with changing tmends
end aspratizns, bafons it ia translated nto tha Masiar Plan which
guides the devdopment of indvidual land pamals in Singapars
ower -a shorier horzon of 15 years, The last major review of 1ha
Concapt Plan wes completed in 2001, with & mid-termn revies
eemplebad in DO0E.

imandar fo provide mpute for the Reaview, LIRA hes alao undertaken
&n exlense pubic corsuliation eseecise. Our public consultation
far Concepd Plan 2011 began with $he Liestde Survey Bunched
om 11 August 2009 and compiatad in March 2000, The survey
invaked about 4, 000 respandents and sought o bettar understand
the dastyvia noeds and aspimadions of Sngapome’s resdents, identify
end mecommend iImproverrants to addmess gaps 0 tha currend
prowvision of ermenilies end feclities, and gather inlcrmation on the
factons that cominbiule (o peogle Gl oping 8 Song of balondeng
ko Singapars,

Tha Lifsatyle Sirsey was complamantad with an onling surey
launched in Aprl 2000, Both survays showed that overall pubdic
eatiafaction evelks with thelr Iving, workdrg and B lzune sndronmsants
have improved aver the years, i barms of (he veriety of housing
apliang, provison of essontal Eclilies and he rangs of BSung
facliies snd schivities svailable, Announcing the suraay findings
el tha URA Corporata Plan Seminar on 30 Agril 2010, Minister i
Mational Devesopment Mah Eow Tan sad thal the suney resuls
wam sncowrnging - more than 80 per cant of reapondents agraed
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e 4 CAANCRE G & COMUCTYE amArnnment ov a0

thatl Singapone 5 a great place bo Ie, work and play o, and T4
per cent sgread that Singepaors & & vivent and saciting city with
e ™ distingired Charachar,

I'ma surveys show high eassiaction levais win the basic aspects
of quakiy of ke that ass most inpodant 10 the peepls, Le. pubis
franspord, food ard beverage estshlishments, hedthcane, grean
spaces, and educational faciites. This sugoests that our plana
and vanous iniliathwas 1o enhanca ke quaity of [Fe ars hoaded in
e fght dinselion in meatng the llestde needs and aspisalions
of our people in tarms of the provision of ezasntial faciities, tha
weriely of housing optiona, end tha range of lesue actvilies
avalable n Sngapome, The indngs ako indcale Aeas wihe we
can do bettar, or axarmpla, in tamns of tha mnge of nghl tima
actvities avallable, promoting the use of pubiic transport, making
aur facillies more aldedy-diendly, and grealer invahament al
peapka shaping thar Ikng arstronmant

A5 P of Tl pulie consutalicn for the mniew of Corcept Plan
2011, two focus groupe compriging mestibars from pendessionsl
organisalions, nof-govemmanial | organisations,  ecadamia,
cormmunity leadess, youllh, efc wene aso appoeviad by URA In
January 2010 to lock ima four kay issuss - qualty of [fa, ageing
isswas, custainabiiby ard deatity — thall wil skhape owr e, wark
and play amdrcrment In the coming wears. Afer four montha
al exensve dscussion, s8e visils, debale, deiberation and
brainsiorming sessions, tha two focus groups prosented ther drad
racommendations at two public forums in May 20710 for feedback,
Tha firnal reports by the Facus Groups wene submitied 1o MMD
and URA and eleesad 10 e public. LURA wil atudy ™ fnal
reparts from the Focws Groups and take the recorrmeandalions
into cansideratian in drevaing up Concapt Plam 2011
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DEVELOPING SINGAPORE FOR
SUSTAINABLE LIVING

Tha gowamment astabizhaed the Economic Srategies Committaa
(ESC In May 2008 o dewvelop srategies for Srgapons o mest
Increasng chalenpgas, buld cepabiitiag and rmasimiss cppotunities
2= a ghabal cily in a new workd emdronrmant. URA plped a ey role
In the two Sub Commitees of the ESC, which wane tREked 10 maks
meenmmencalions on "Making Singapore a Leading Global City®
and for “Land Procuciivity for Fulum Growth® respecvely

To make Singapore a leading giobal city, the Sub Cammities
prepasad b astablsh Sngapara as Asian's most leoabia city,

dewvelop Singapaore Into Mew Asia’s hub for innevaticn and
Craglive Bnierpriss, and make Sngapora the best home o
lalgrl, Thi Sub Commilled hid sumenus ecorrmindaliong
to magimisa velus from land as & scarca rasowta and theasa
inGhicle maxing 2oning and e chanss o land use more Nexibls
ard irvasting N the cragtion and use of undarground spaca.
URA will play a kay role in carying out these strateges and
recommentations.

SUPPORTING SINGAPORE'S BLUEPRINT
FOR SUSTAINABILITY

Singapore's woeld-clasa infrastructune, comfortsinds and stiondeble
housing provisions, os well as our ush gman oy are al the results
of carelyl rmansgament of difeeent End use nesds and the
asaption of mnosative solutons 1o optimse 1he use ol our imiisd
land ancd JEsourcos.

IR, in colabombon with the Housmg and Developrmand Board
(HOB, Lard Trenspoet Authority (LTA) and Mational Pariks Board
(MParkg), hove signed sgrecments with the National Unbersity
ol Sngapoes (MUS) b embark an @ Seras ol sesn rgseah
projects la sludy issweaes on sushkrabla wihan davelaormant.
Thea mazmarch aims jo develop new wben planning ard design

moommeandations 1o help Sngapore contnue 10 BChieve
oconamis, ool ard arviarrmanta devalopmoent 0o bakarooed

ard sustainatln marnar, This resaaech projscs wil be caried oo
wilh th suppar of & grant of about BT mikon fam e Mirielry of
Metional Development (MKD) Raseanch Fund.

he par of the meascch, acieting mternationsl bast peachicas
an =ustsinable development wil ba denlified and enelead,
o prowikde benchmerks dor sustaabe performenca, end
halp towards davedoping solutions which wil be applicabla in
Singapoam. In planning and development for sestanakbde high-
density Wing. & chster of sl projects wil look at High-Denstty
Threghold Studies, Usban Clratic Mepping Siedies, Urban
Grponery Sfudes, Urban Transport Modeling in Hgh Densiby
Ervinrments, Lman Metaboism (ndestrial Ecclogy] Siudes,
and Usban Spazos.
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Maring Bay, which 5 the oonregiecs o SiNGapd
ransiomation. wil ba & key platiorn and catalst
gredh. 1wl hoet ow new firancial cfy and
|:|-.'5||?C|-"| as a H-El:ll"l'!] fnanal and Dusirass

AR The Bay offe reeTiRr walrrtonl L

Beeond Es economic sorificance, Manna Bay represents awr
aspirations lor & betler ity and & babler He o al Shigaporeans,
Sirgapore can and wil eEman estremety veabie a5 o oy een
&= wa grow. The Bay & hersiomn planned asz a dastinstion that al
Sirgeporeans can anjoy Whather & i to take i panoramic views

e Gy shylira, paes al the Dasuiiul walerlmn] o attend events and
participale in actvilias, you can experience & all here al the Bay,

Merina Bay continued to anchent peopla with high profie events
At ae g b WMasing Bay SINGAPOQRE Goartcssn 0040,
jointy prasenied with Espianade — Thaatres on the Bay Inta it 11
run, e Courtdown was a contemplative celebration thad united
indedduale from &l walke of e thiough & colecive esprasson
ol wishues for the yoar aboad, Tho ovenl saw moms than £ K]
wighes from e community penned on 20,000 '.'.'H"IFI»:] EDNenes
which were 5at afoat in #w Hay o fomm a spectacular visusl ars

The nurnber of wighing spherea doubded fom ke predous

licrey miGne DRopIE 10 peErticipate in his urique Mew' Year's
Eve Talmon i Singapore.

LIFA was @ peEriner 10 Several new ey gvenis al Marna Bay 1hai
birowght buzz 1o e area, These hcluded the Arts Fast@kdarng Bay,
& specEly-areaied ssgment of the Singapoe Ards Festial, which
was hald for the frst time at Marina Bay in May 2070, Simiark;, the
SN Buil Change, & chary fun fun in thie Ceriral Busgness Distic,
wias haid for the first ime at Barina Bay in Movembar 20068, Prodfic
a8 Sich as MroJan Gahl, WP Darg L Doctonodl, Mr Fed
Eant and ke Kalky Madden wer fimd o speak i@ Sanns of
pualic ks orpanised by the UAA 10 omate mons plotizrms for the
COTITILNITY Bnd stakenoidens 1o laar and Jiscuss Bsues paninent
o Marina Bay,

To mark the complation of several key devaiopmanta in Marne Bay
&nd 1o introduce the ame 83 the new focal paint for Singapossans
end visfors, URA nbroduced a yeardong serias of avands themexd
A By et 0 18l TalLing R e,
wilh aclivities 1o Bp 3, 10 encourage the
comimunity ogo and axpanence Marira Bay,

in Ayl 2010 weaa tee landmark pecestrian bidge, “Tra Haa®, which
acts Marma Cendm 10 fha Badhont asa, Tha Yoush Ohrmgic
bocated af the entrance of the bidge, cnened a11ha same time
and featums owatve artwork spaciely dawn up by soma of our
SrgaponsEn youths. 1He vercusr Dricia wimch & paraia b Shenes
Bridge and connecis fo the new Beyfront Avenue, was apaned bo
wehicular traffic in Agel 2070 and nemed the Bayfmnt Bridge.

Ona of tha key dessopmants that LIRS completed and launched
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AEA works posaly with

SARSNONIETS [0 EnivEn Enad 5000 45

he Sngapovs Mver and the Cichan Aoad preci

ENT WITH A HEART

Flace MENEgQETENT MONEE & co-ondinalad apormach 1o Nefmess
i papatEa and mmarumes of ithe pebde and nmmete sectors o
creafa places that ars economcally amd aocially Wiorart. [T rmeohses
working with siakehoiders 10 rgeove Balh the hardhmare and
softwm al an aeesy, espacialy the branding, markeding and avenls
programming of 1he anas

UFA chaks the Flace Management Coondingting Farum for three
key precincts Le. Onchard Foed, Bras Bassh Bugls and Singapore
Rivar. In addition, URA hes telen an tha rola of championing
agancy far place managemant of Singapore Hver

Complementing the placs menagernent noe undeakan oy LFSS
Marira Bay Davelopmant for Marne Bay, the Mirestny of
Mational Developrmen ha guen @5 n-princaa apamndal for
UFS o D the central oo iy A thal will owerses the
icaneing of corenarcial water activiies and water franeporation
sandcas in Grostar Mair Bay




'RESERVING MEMORIES, ENHANCING
DEMNITITIES

Bngapors has undergone a drematic trensformation o the
st e decodes since 195% From a oolory with sgquatter
cormrmirities, poor sanitation and poluted fearz, we fave becorms
& cogmopoliten garden city, & magnat for busneas ard peapla
frorm all ardund the workd, Even as Singapare conlinues o mamika
M b sy ahesd 8 & global eeonormic Fukd, we nedd 10 miska
an aftort 1o retak our social mernarks. We ako need 10 salaguard
priy=ical Manfesiaicns o our SNered pes (of ouf pedie and
e=spacially for our wounger generstion who hava not ved throwgh
thase years of nation bulding,

Since 19488, conserdalon Stetus has been ghvan 1o 94 conseration
argas invohing sorma 024 buldings trepughout tha ialand. From
st aDoul J000 buikfngs i 1983, wae hiiroe now mone Dhan doubiled
the number of conserved buldings and siruchures. This is no
mazan foal considering our clzo and 1ha pace of devalopmant. Far
Hrea e In reviaw, URA gazetied 165 bulkings for consansation.

Howserdar, consereabon of phyescal strectunas alonels notmeaningiul
i hese dve nol woDgnsed and vakesd by (e communily as par
ol our comman hartage We nesd the communitys supnor 1o
echiewa B sustainable and meaningful corcarvabon programma,
In racent vears, UIRA has nomasingly consulied our slakabolders,
guch as archilects, oaners, busmesses and communily groups,
in Implamenting and axpanding k2 consardation progeammea,
URA creahed T annual Anchiteciural Hertage Awards in 18495 1o
promiata and ineple qualkty restoration end to accond rcognibon
o the owners, anchitocds and ongnesrs and confracions wha
achiesen archRRciursl paoalancs,

On & Octooer 2009, Ms Grace Fu, Sanice Mindgtar of Sinte
far Matonal Dessopment and Educalion gave oul the 2008
Archiiectural Hentage Awards 1o elghd recipients, Thase winnng
projecis ingiude hoopilnlly ootabllahmants suoh as Tho Agoati
Eln;pau:-crs Hattiee Flaca at the od Asla Insurance Ediding, the
Capala Snpapore, as wel as beautiuly restored residances such
&= the ndian Hgh Commissioner's bungaiow at Pance Aoad, a

tamace housa at Galrmhil Boad and a roese of shophowses ot Joo
Chigl Flace Among e winners ang ko e Mationas Liniversity ol
Singapore Sociely's (MUSS) Bukdt Tirmah Guid House, a miigious
ek icaticn s centre a1 Giztaad Road, and finaly, the crginal Victora
Sohoolwhich now howsas the People’s Associalion Headauarters,
With the addlion of thaese sghl winnes, a total of 97 projects
have mecebaed T Saards ainga itz launch i 1985,

Memibars of our community Mewve also been taxing 8 more active
ol in tha conssneabion affort and volunteemd thar buldngs dor
COnesreaion. LIRS ennouncad the consenalion of Tour new ansas
and buiidinge &t the 2000 Architectural Heritege Awerda. Cne of
thiem Is @ covshad and farmouss &1 Dairy Farm Rosd which s
& chanmming reminder of the ald Cold Sicrage G0-acre &y farm
sal up in 1828 whens the very first batches of high-gualty fresh
milk and dellolous e omam waoe preduced n Sngaporo. Tha
cowshiad, onca housing cows trom Holand peowiding nouwrishing
milk, is now re-used a2 an educational cenbre bo ieach aur youryg
abaud aur ralural haritaga.
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DESIGN AND LIVEABILITY OF A CITY

Mery cities ara faced with challengea of rapid whan growth, lack
ol housing and infrasfructure and increasing fraffic congastion
Sirgapore 100 feeks O develop a heable and sussainable city
wilh a good qually of lile. In he apinl of calabraling excabarce and
innovation in ot the Los Muan Y Wiond Cl.'g.- Frize was pHicially
launched by Senior Minkster Prod 5 Javakumar on 22 Juna 2008 at
the Sngapon Interrational Water Waak Opaning Cenamony,

Co-organiged Dy LIRS and tha Candma for Lveable Cities, the
inasgural Prize sesos to recognise the achiesements of outsanding
indeiduals and onganizstions wha have contributed uinan nitatheas,
poicias or prowcis which epfomize foesght, good gowenance or
inrosstion N ceercomingg e clhellmges Bosd by ciliss, 1L prosues
& platiorm t2 highight and celebrate urban solutions and o spur
furfier inrosaton in the area of sustanable uban deselopment and
cily emcellancs.

A Series of ewants were organisad in conjunciion with the launch,
Thery Included a meda contersnce, & pansl discusson and A
three-day exhibition which garmamd 10,000 visiors, Rosdshoes
wlerd ikl B August 10 Nowvember 20049, in vanous Gites and
&t intermational confersnces, o genarats publicity and puaranass
for the Priee, and bo reach oul %O pobertial nominators and
nominses waorkdwida, [ha TEworicwida nomnations or the Frize
warg canafully coraidered through & rigorous two-fiar procass
comprising a Mominating Committes and a Prize Souncil

Tha Prize Leureats was oficlally announced on 18 May 3010,
Bibao City Hal was ramed the naugural Prize Lawmate in
racogriion of ds mbegrated and holistic appecach to urban
transformation. Baoth jury panals wara partiouaely impressaed
wilh wifial Oibac had scheved, through a chronological and

systematic omder of devslopment over a penod of 25 pears $at
waE Dot wal-integrated and skiifully execiuied. Bibap Citg Hal
hes mpomvad Bibea's emvironmant and quality of e significantty,

sinengrhened its social cobesiveness and cutural vibrancy as wal
as sharpenad its poonomic competitivanass.

Thia roee of design in citiess worlchwide and ks economic, sooil ard
erviorrmantal impact Sermonstrales its increasing importancs ared
tha critical rale it pleys in corrrnurities and businesses. \Whila mapping
out and guiding Singapore’s physical frarsformaton, LARA & also
rrrctil of the read 16 promate good daesgn in aur Buill ersinonment
ard rase pubkc swaeness of good srchectuns and urban design in
Singepon. Beskies outreach programmmes such as ks, exhibRions
and semnars, desion competitions can be 8 healthy and creste
catalst for tha dasign fetemity and the genarml publc

Prasdent 5 F Mathan prasenled Singapom's most prestigious
design sward 1o four outstandng designers and ssven graund-
breaing cecgne &t the Presdents Design Award Ceremony
held at Thea Etana on 19 Movamber 2008, Administered [ointly
by the DesignSingapore Gouncil end URA. tha Awerd honows
tha signiicart achievernaris and corfributions of the city-slale's
design talents and & awanded 1o desipners and designs that haws
chalenged comentions with innovation and anhanced the lives of
tha corremunly.

The Prasicents Design Aeard d50 &@ms o promdle asd
recognise design adcallancs in Singapors By ambecdding goeod
dasign in evarpday e for competitve advantage, guality of
life and the armsronmant. The winning designs wera selected
by sn appoirtad imtematioral pansl of expsrt uroes from both
Singepore and ovwerseas,

Peperahs Pofra
i aiwo one of

ealiaes and Dotk aoaces,
v 2000




ards are enjopng tha watermont cromenade and
W ol viavs of e STraie ar bohoe

ENRICHING OUR LIVING ENVIBONMEMNT

Crear the years, URA has teken on anvimonmeantal improyemant
projecls 1o creale 3 pleaszan] stoalscape for podestians whils
enhancing 1he idantity of varous localites, As URA sew the
need 1o go beyond conssrvation and prowiding harcware and
nfmetructums, we developed tha Parkes & \Wasarbodiss and Idantity
Plans as parl of the Masier Plan 32000 eewiew 10 povkie moee
grasnery of e wihdle and &5 provice moee access with Defter
connecivity i areas of netunal basuty. We wan to enhance our
Bdng emércnment by making the most of our nefural B=sats and
Piesghbaring 1he sanda Ol gresnen.

Wa consuted e local commurity i bether  undarstand
e Characher s h.EI:'JI'“F al P aeEs and considersd the
enhancemanis thalt could be iImplementsd 1o complemeant the
digting! chasrn and identlty of sach placa. Propesals inchade tha
opaning up of watarionis; mporoving connactiity and pedesinian
Inkages betwean major nodes; oreatng community spaces. and
praviding more publc amanitics

LIRAT latest roraational ofianng, the WoodBands Waterfromnt, was
opened o ihe poble in May 2000 The WaodEands Waledrond i@
part of thed 19 ke park COMMBCIoRE: N tha acrham egion, which
il e Incraased 10 90 ke crear thie nast 10 10 15 years, In futung,
Eneriwdl B a seamiess joopng and cyaing route krusers o enjom,
frcem E-.ln-gai Bulioh YWatand Mesarsa, 10 Woodlands Wabarront,
Adimiralty Park, Sembawang Pak and to Lower Salatar Hessreairn
Resilart= wam dddichied] wih fam lissh grsan pcnn araas al this
200 m stmich of waterdront promenade, as well as the long [ethy
with breatiaking viewes of e Sirats of Jahor. Thens & alao a large
ewant piera and 8 mul-genestional playground with a Sky Walk
end tree pods for both the voung and the young at heart

Construction of the 4.8 km long Punggal Pomenace ako
comr@toid wilh a grousdbmaking commony R August 30049,
Pumggol Premanace i@ pal of & B.7 ko waleron! proemanacds
where Punpgol resdeniz EnNd vELGE C3N W0OK fonaard 10
discowverng the nustic charm aof 1he tranguil Punggol coast as wel
&= tha fora ard fauna lowisking it is soreme suroundings. Mas
racreational fecities such as a park complate wilh & chidren's
plapground, fitness slafons, fishing pants and ealanes will gk be
bt o complete the cvarmal exparence. The Punggol Prosmanade
willenhanoe the sanse of wateriont ving in Purgood tagethear with
thi 4.2 km Pungeol Walenway which cornects Sungei Purgas
end Surgal Serangoon,

More recenlly waliways al Siglan Vilage ware widened and
rEH'@'IElj wilh iImproved |i|"l-&l'li|'|g. and open draing war decked

over 1o provice & wider and mare comfonable Tooipath, Lush
landzcapeng wes o adoed along Upper East Coast Acad ta
enhance grearary of the strestecrpe end provide a natursl
green safely buffer betwesn pedesiians and moving vehicies,
As atfination of these Improvement works, closs 10 86 per cant
of the residente and vistors pollad in tha area agreed that the
enhanced walkways o now mone atiracthve and pleasant, Thiy
espacially aporeciated e Improved safety o cedestrans by
lecating the foodpath aéay fom tha readsica.

As part of our continual efors o make Singapore an atiractive
city and endedring homa, UAA alsa sees the importance of
eNCOURaging good design in our pubdc speces and infrastruchne,
Dhoby Ghaut Grean s the latest addition 1o the varlaty of pubds
spaces hal have Boen coabed within ihe Gy Brpugh URA%
Publbc Spaces and Urian Walertmnt Mashar Plan, This plan sms
i It more vibrency Infe our ity centre teough speces such
&s publc parks and ppen plazas within commercial develoomenis
which provide platforme for community patheringe and avents:

Located along Orchard Foad end &t the gateway of the Ats,
Culture, Learning and Erfertainment disincd of Bra= Basah.Bugis,
Orobry Shaut Green & anvisioned 10 beanathaer papukarnammunity
focal poird ihal wil add & freah viks 10 the cly canie as a choace
venua for community ewands, celebrations and parformancas. Tha
green oasis was oificialy opened an 24 Oolobar 2008 and oiers
maspite for those who are seaking a qust space amid the hustle
and bustle of he Gy

(hoby Ghaust Green 15 Me keest accihon &g the wmaly of public sneces (v e oy oanim




FACILITATING A QUALITY LIVING

ENVIRONMENT

To halp malise URAS plans on the gound, i is impodant Lo
faciiiale lend dewalopmeant snd ensum hel devalopmant
propasals ara R ine with the planning intentions stipulated in
@ Cancopl Plam and tha Master Pan, Wo da this thraugh
canaill evaluation of propoEsd usas Lo mmemiiEe land ugs conficia
gnd disturbances to the neghibourhoods. URAE desalopmant
gurdelinas ara al=a mvieensd regularky in tanderm with changing
angs and publo expecialions 50 a5 10 Siay relavand,

URA saught publs feedback throwgh Bn onling sureay far da
planning guidalines on Iva sntartainmant Robvitias i restEUrmnta,
food snops and pubs Boated in peivate shophouses nas
rasidentisl estates Inihe resiew of the chanpe of use guidsines,
wa naedad 1o balance tha oppoang meads o meidants wha
wansg such ameniies; busness operglars wiho wanied mare
Reaibiity in i Dusines activitles: and resdents who prelemed
fer neghbourhaod to mman undisherbed.  Some 80 per
cant of tha respondants, espacially rasidents |iving mear private
shophouses, did nod suppaort having Fve music end performencas
in such localilies cua fo the pomndial mise disturbanoas and
gociEl probiams for nearby resldents,

Givon these corcerns. URA decided o mlain the exisling
gudeiinga whees ive muslc and paricsmances wil not ba allswed
i restauranle and pube ecalsd B prials ehaphousie Hake
resideniial esaes. Ower the yean we initaied Dusiness-riendly
enhencameniz to some of URAR chanpe of uws=a guideines,
saving smal business oparators trme and cost and also prosiced
e faxidily 1o respond to changing markat meeds.

W alkso msdewed and released a sel ol comprehensie guidilines
for culdoor signs outside the Central Ares on 14 Sepbember SO0
The guideines are IMended to sirike a balanca Detween
gafeguardng cur sireatacape from viguel clulter and meating

A claorrneny guicednes el o Bciate o oty Adng orasrmrreed

the mesds of busiresses for advertising space al appropriate
Incations

With the hienadcation of our bult amdonmant, theee wers
concams fist some larger dewelopments bult with highar pled
rafia and storey hekghl, are imposing on the swemunding,. The
cumLletive impact of many such wal-ike developmants coukd
artearealy affect tha guaity of tha coarsll bult andrormant. LURA
colaborstad with mpreseniatises from the Singapora nsthuis
of Amchitects (Sl4), the Rea Esiats Deswedopers' Associabon of
Singapom [REDAS), and tha Sngapos Irstituia of Panners (S1P]
toform & aludy tearm in Febiruany 2008 o review his and eslablish
a fremawoik (o mitigele the potential envirconmental concems.

Tha framewsrk and mcommendations workad out By tha
tEam wend Compled nio & Good Prisgiog Guide and reeased
thmuagh an indusing saminar on 4 barch 2010 The 180-stming
participants at the seminar walcomed the new framewors and
andureed the need to safepuand 8 pleasent Bing and warking
arsironment eary on at tha dasign s1age. They zaw & 23 & imaly
intiative and mone imponantl, the guide was orafted by the
induatry for the ndustry.

LIRA, ook crenr thie secratariat function for the Streat and Bulding
Mames Board (EBME) from the Inland Pevarwes Sulbodity of
Singagore on 30 Agrl 2000 to furthar augment the urban
heritage ol the key paces In Singapoee through the naming of
thiesn budings and streels. Thang will be graler convaniencs
in obiaining developrment approsas, and subsegquendly The
Buliding and sirest name aporovak: of the geveiopmeant thnougn
a singla platfoern instead of geing bo fwo separale agancies. To
serue aur cusiomers batier, URA also launched a sk of new
a-zarvices to Taciltate fast and easy application of street, astates
and building narmeas.

i STMEFTIA SOl

PR i Tam
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A STABLE AND SUSTAINABLE PROPERTY
MARKET

LIRA confinued to play an imponiand moke in helping 1o raitain
@ elabks and suetairable property market for the vear in ravies
through the planning of the Govarnment Lend Sales [GLS|
Progeermmes and formulation of key proparty markat policies.

LRA assisted the Ministry of Mational Developrmant (WIND) in
findlizing the GLS Programme o private msidential, commesncal
and hotal devalopments for the second half of 2000 (ZH2009
and e first half af 2000 [(TH2010). Given the uncanan markel
condtion: dudng the asrly past of 2009, MND announced the
coritinusd suspansion of the Corfemed Lst tor the 2H2002 GLS
Prograrmemes. Howsavar, amplka sias wers made availabla for sak
via tha Beserwa List 5o that desalopers had the fliexhility 10 initiaba
ackdilional sapgply i needed. The Resarse Lisl proved bo be a
ragponsive gyatam, &3 threa abes for residenial developmants,
one e for commesial and residantial desalopment. twn 2iBag
far ndustia deeopments and one bols sie were succesfully
triggered by oevelopers in responsa 10 Improvemients 0 marke
condtions snd wana sold by URA In 2H2000

LIRA also assited MWD in making improvernents (o fho Reseres
Liz! yzlern o lurther eénhanca s meSponskanass, Thase
improvements wiich wene announcad by MKND in March 2010
incuged reducing the depcsit 1o ba prosvidad by successful
cpplicarts of Fosorsn List sifos and misasing sios on the Rosoreo
Lis1 far sele whan thera |8 suffcient mankei nierast reoevead or
tha sites,

=

In addrion to ates an the Resarve List, the Confirmed List was
prampdy ranstaled as gart of tha 1H2010 GLE Pragamme in
responsa to the strong demand for private housing and the
improved condilions i the praperty markel. The tolal potentil
private houging supply quartum of 10550 unitz from both the
Confrmed and Reseres Lisis of the 1H2010 GLE Prograrmrme
w35 the highest #om amy half-yeary GLS Programme snce the
Reseran List syshern started in 2H2001. Thie 26 sitles for rscenlEl
devaiapment in the TH2310 GLS Programme wers alao locaied
in areas wham more effordable private housng waes excaciad to
v Bt 1 el cherrsaned for uch howsing. Apart Fom asuwing an
ampss aupply of sibes for reskdantial developmanta, the 1H2010
GLE Programme Skss conlinued 10 make available 8 wide variaty of
sites for hotel and commanziel deveiopments on tha Fesarsa List.
In all, = sites for residential develogrnants, one sila or translional
office deveopment and thres sites Jor industrial developments
wera sokl Dy LIHA in the eardy par of 2000

Apar from injecting mom supply of priveds housing theough tha
GLE Programme b mesl the sbrong rébound in e properly
markat. R4 also providied the analysis and meommendations for
the mesumes anncunced by the Govwemment on 14 Septernber
2004 and 19 Feoruary 2010 to ensum a stabke and sustainebie
property market. Thase measumes ncluded the removal of the
Interest  Absorpton Scheme (A5 and Interest-Cnly Housing
Lomng [I0L], the mboduction of a palbra’ slemnp dty (S50] for
private residental peopariies, End lewening of the Loan-io-vElus
LT limit for howsing bans.

L
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EXPANDING OLR INTERMATIONAL
PRESEMCE

Thousenos of wvisitors, from nationel eaders, ity mayors,
govarnmsant officals, and professonats fravel acress the ploba
each year to ind aul khow Singapom did & Fram undersianding
our land uss planining system to lesming our besat practicas, many
HEE US 85 an seamplany succags slory whens inlegrabed plarming
and faciitaiing mechanismsa wan instrumental 0 frarsicming
SirgganGed rlo a wiseant and distincineg city,

LR& sheres its plamning expanence with others thmough fs
consutancy services, professonal courses and serminars. We tap
anoer Beperience and expentss honed in Singapare, to 1ake par
in the mesier planning of other cies. Wa played a eading role in
o master planning of o Sino-Sngapore Tanjn Coo-city and
ELItIEE'EIU'Hl'I"'l' Shared Ow agpanencas n s proect at samnars
Iecalky and nbarnationally which war sany well ecaved

LURA lad the Urban Plannirg Sub-group to complete the feasabiity
siLy for [ha Guangdong Knowiedos City Praject & 1he imdtation
af Bnghridge Intematianal Pre Lid, Shangl Arporte Internations
&e0 engeged us &6 their masgter plenning coreulent for thal
inasirment projec) in Durgapur, India

In April 20008, UEA inoduced a tour-cay infegraied Land Lisea
Planring coursa torgeled at foreign and ocal governmaent

gty o ad far e L

affcials and private sectar profasaionals. The course fosussad on
practical appleation and training was conductad by sepenencad
URA planners. There have been a faw more uns snce, including
ang in Chinese. R4 elso conducted a skmilar custormisad course
r Abu Dhati for the Daparrmand & Municipal Affairs. Thene won
ather numencus shon sessons condusted in Snoapone ' vialing
dignitaries, kadars and professonaks,

LIRS plzo playe a part In enrancing tiiataral ratationships with othar
gountrizs, 'We organisad an inaugural Singapore-lter Planning
Forum N Sngapore eadier (s yesr as pat of MND'S effort D
premoie chagar interacton with our Qater countenpart.

To pomote Singepone as an atiractive global oty for Investimenl
and aliracting falenis. URA participated in vamaus inlemalional
weill gstale radeshows and conlerances Polental irvestors and
lgdents wars kept up 1o date on our Blest devaiopments and
sibwand city culture, YWa ook tha apporiunity 10 showcase Marna
Hey at Ciyscape Asia, Singapons, Fom 19 ta 21 May 2009, al
Heal Estete Imvestmant World Asla on 22 June 2008 and at MIFP
Camnes fiom 16 fo 78 March 2010,

THE URA SPIRM

Shrong peEson and good teaTraor have hepad UHA overcome
many challanges (o deiver innoealive ard high cuality plans and
earvices (o our cuslemsns — 1he pacpls in Sngapors. A2 we refllec
on 35 years of planning achiewements and shapng Singapone ima
thavirant anddistinctve city that wa know focay, wa alsocelehirate
the hard wark of the peopla behind hese achinvemenis.

LIRS plarnned @ series of fun stalf evenls such as e UEA Mg
Clash, wiwe stalt and famiy members ook pan 0 ielswe ioues
ond compedthe races thal brought them to verious inbenasting
locations in Sngapore. Fast and peesant managemeans leaders,
cheirmen, end boand mambsrs who wers with UAA asfar back as
1874 celaoraied over dinnar, Apart from the good times, the oid
&N naw guards frealy exchanged and eneesd ideas and nsighis.

Even as we look back ol our pasl achiesemarts | is edualy
impartant 10 ansuns et LIRS i ready 10 ke on new e halenpes
in e lurure, To 1S end, LIRS Nas ComMnuousl’ revisssd and
enfanced cur organisston praciices. Ameng them was lhe
introdusction of the Enterprise Rk Managemeant az a ey fool 1o
complement and siengihen our Corporale planning, &nd sodress
potentia gaps thatl wodd otherwize impede our work. e heve
slgo made iImprowamants in tha wey wa manags our people that
s s Sk home iour svands corderned By the Singapom Human

LR, bt
SO LEi

FesouwrTa Insiiuie. The Leadng HA Fraciices Awards recognized
LIFA ‘for achigving afacthveness in fhe ama of ampleyea
enpagerrant, work-fe balancs, errpimes weliness and Barning
and development, which furihar valdebes tha eremplarny work st
LIRA has dans 1o build an exzeliant organisation

in recogrition of the growing emphasts on tha wa of tecnnology
in T warkgplace, URAS, has ermioaroed om sesaeral imf@tes such as
bpraging an rdes echnniogy and mecia Boe 30 cigital rmockeling
and Faceboos 1o facigate cur planning wark ard incmase our
outreach and pubhc engegemeant. LANE capability in 300 dighal
modeling was ak=o put to the test when URA produced a wal-
racaived and populer video to showeess the fuiues Marina Bay, as
part of Prme Minigter's Mational Day Raly Speach in August 2004,

Anather significant migsione was the inking of a special research
collaboration wilh ESR Ing. and ESEI Singapon, & world keader in
T SR AR INICRTTRELION Sysiem [LE5) Crmsin, YW fi working
igether bo explore the mtegraton of 20 GIS and 30 digital
wian mooel systems o ischtate plenning and urban design
work procasses m URAS as wall as 10 pubiksh our GIS maps
anid 30 moceEs on an inegrated piattormn, This 20-30 entegrise
ayatamg eval mbagraticn will oe the trat i the word and wdl yvalkd
mmeasurable benaits for LIRS and the industny




BUSINESS AND
ORGANISATIONAL AWARDS

The International Architectural Awards 2009
for Alexandra Arch and Forest Walk
by The Chicago Athanasurm

Singapore Structural Steel Design Award

(Sparts, Briciges and Healthcara o Other Structures Category)
for Hendarson Waves

by The Singapore Structural Stesl Soclety

President's Design Award - Design of the Year 2009
for Henderson Waves

Geospatial Excellence Award

(Gaonspatial Application for Uirban Plannng Categaory]
for Draft Master Plan 2008 website

by Map Asia

Public Service Distinguished Award
by Pubdc Service Division, Prime Minister's Office

Leading HR Practice in Employee Relations & People Management

Leading HR Practice in Quality Work-Life

Leading HR Practice in Health & Employee Wellnass

Leading HR Practice in Learning & Human Gapital Development (Special Mention)
by Singapore Human Resource Institute

15-Year SHARE Outstanding Award 2010
{Social Help and Assistance Raised by Employess)
by Community Chest
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Wa have audited the accompanying financal statermants of Urban Padevelopmeant Authorty
e "Aulborty™) set out on pages 40 1o 87, which compriae the Statement of Financial
Position as 81 31 March 2010, Statement of Comprehansive income, Statement of Changes
in Capital and Resarves and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and &
summary of signifizant accounting polcies and other explanatory notes,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is respongdbde for the preparstion and fair presentation of these financial
slalerresnls i scuordanoe wilh Lhe prosisions ol the Urkaan Redeveioprment Aalbuarity Al
{Cap, 340} {the "Act”} and Statutory Board Financisl Reporting Standards, This responsiiity
includes dasigning, implementing and maintaining imernal control relevant to the prepasation
and far presantalicn ol linancial statemenls 1hatl ara frea Fom maleral missiatamant, wihelha
due o fraud or eron, selecting and applying appropriate accounting poicies, and making
accounting estimates that ane reesonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responaibility is 1o express an opinecn on these inancial slaements based on our sudit,
We conducted our aucht in accordance with Singapore Stardards on Awditing.,  Thoss
Standards require that we comply with ethical requiremeants and plan and perform the awdit
o olotain reasonable assuanos as to whather the financial staternants are frae from materal
masssatement,

An audt involves performing procedures to cbtai audt evidence about the amounts and
disciogures in the financial staterments. The procedures selected depend on the sudicrs
judgament, including the aszessment of the rske of material mézetatement of the financial
staterments, whether due (o raud or error. in making hose rigk assessments, the audilor
cansicars internal controd relevant 1o the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financlel stalements in order 1o design audil pocedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purposs of expressing an opinion on the effeciiveness of the
enlilys intermal conbml, Anaudil sk inchedes evaualing he apooprialengss of seoouling
policies used and the reasonableness of accounfing esfimates made by management, as
well az evaluating the overall presentation of the financial steterments.

We bebove that the audi evidence we have obtained B sufficient and apgropiate 1o provids
& basis for our audit opiniaon.

Opinion
In our opinion.

ig] the financial statements of the Authority are propery drawn up in accordance with the
provigione of the Act and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards o as to gve
a frue and fair view of the stale of afairs of the Anhorily as at 31 March 2010, and tha
resullts, changes in capial and reservas and cash flows of the Aumarity for the fisancial
year ended on thal date;

b propes socoueling sno ol regorcs reguined by (be Act, including records of all sssels
of the Authority whether punchesed, denated ar otherwise, 1o be kept by the Autharity
hawve bean properly kept in accordance with tha provisions of the Act and

] the inancial staternents are in agreement with the accounling and other reconds and are
prepared on a basis simitar 10 thet adopied for the precedng year,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

During the courss of our audit, nothing came 1o cur notice that caused us to believe that the
recaipizs, expenditure and investment of menies and the acquisition and disposal of assets
by the Authority during the financial year have not been in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

Emphasis of Matter

Withouwt qualfying our opinicn, we drew aftention to Mofe 6 to the financial staterments. At
31 March 2010, the Autharity has capitaksed $154,521,000 (31 March 2009 : $65,965,000)
relating te infrastructural projects-in-progress, These amounts ams ressgnised as an assel an
the Authority's Staterment of Financial Position as its accumuleted surplus 1s used 1o fund these
projects. On completion of the infresiructural projects, the assets will be fransfemed to the
clesigraled gorvesrieenl agencies as a corlribalon i Uhe guvenmenl, wilh g cormesponcdirng
recluction againsi the Authority’s accumulated surplus,

(olitr, «otde LA

Fublic Accountants and
Certified Public Azcountants

Singapons
T June 2010



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 March 2010 For the financial year ended 31 March 2010
31 March 2010 31 March 2004 200042010 200872009
Pdertie 000 $000 Mote %1000 §'000
Man-curreni assets Dperating inoome
Praperty. plar and eguiprmant 5 248,300 £33 255 Perking Tees and related charges 16 E2,490 50,080
Infrastructural prajects-in-prograss 6 629 2,584 Recovery of costs 17 54,570 44 839
Saaff lxang T 5 - Agency and consultancy faes gt ] 25,332 30,733
248,634 240,938 Income from developmens controd % 23,818 a4.514
Dperating Bass noome 5,685 6,636
Current assets Oither operating incoms 1,744 1,613
Infrestructural projects-in-prograss L 153,882 &3.281 173,848 167,824
Dettors, accrusd inferest, prepaymenis and olher debdors i SE.042 43323
Ovher firancial essets ) 512618 &1 ,.808 [ SER
Cash and sash equivalants 10 857,810 ABD 454 Operating sapenses
1,280,871 1,155,866 Expenditure an mangowes m 72512 74,1683
Dpamtng supplies and sendces 52,830 26,268
Lozs: Temporary occupation loence (ees 4 21,142 21,060
TN b N Depreciation of property, plan and equipmearnt 5 8,925 8,778
Dederred income 11 3,004 3252 Property and car pers malntarancs 8,040 8,918
Agancy and othar daposits 18,841 19,032 143,478 120,247
Coantribution to Comaolidated Fund 12 10,606 -
Creditoes and accrued opereting expensas 13 BA.TT4 rasr:
Other firancial liabiites 9 2,646 840 pparating sumius = s araTT
18,48 101 486 Hon-opersting surplusf{deficit)
Net current assets 1,181,410 1,054,370 Net income/floss) from bank deposits wnd ivestments 3 100,737 (95,426)
Other non-operating income 134 171
Less: 100,871 (95,255)
MNan-currant liahilitias
Dederred income 11 1,745 3,525
Creditors and accrued operating expensas 13 3,002 3oz Surplusf|Deficit) belore contribution to Consolidated Fund 131,241 i67,678)
Provision for pensions and gratuities 14 3418 3,832
8,184 10,158 Confribution to Consolidated Fund 12 (10,508 =
1,402,178 1,285,150
. Net surplus/deficit) for the financial year,
Capital and reseres ) .
Cagilsl accourt 15 27,602 27 592 representing total comprehensive incomeloss) for the financial year 120,435 67,678
Agcurmulated surplus 1,374,486 1,267 458
1402178 1,285,160
4-][?\3)(]'()_,*\
CHAM HEMG LOOM ALAM CHEOMG-ZHUS, KOOMN HEAM (MRE)
Chmairman Chigl Execulive OMMcer
T June 2010
Tre SCOEMpanying noses fom an niegral pan of thase Bsancial sSatmans. This Arcempamying noles foem an imegral par of (Nese rancl SalETes,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Far the firancial yvear ended 31 March 2010

Caplal Account Accumulaad Surplus Todal

Mot 000 £'000 £'00d)
Batarce st 1 Apsll 2004 27 e 1,357,023 1,334,714
Total comprehenswe koss for the year - 1aT 678 (67678
Capital injection 15ic) 1 - 1
Transfar of completed infrastructural project & - 20, 495) (25,495)
Funding for governmant projects 24 = 15.231) {B, 331}
Dividand paid 25 . {1.061] {1,081}
Balance at 31 March 2009 a7 a2 1,257,458 1,285,150
Balance st 1 April 2004 2T a2 1,257,458 1,285,150
Total comprehancig Inenme for s yesar - 130435 120,435
Funding for governmant projects 24 - (3,407 {3,407}
Balance at 31 March 2010 ¥T.8a2 1, ATd, 405 1,402,178

TTa RECOTDATTANG AMES W0MT an imageal e of s inancial SIRemenis

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial vear ended 31 March 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
SurpluaiDeficH) bedom condribulion o Coracldated Fund
Adjustrents for

- Depreciation of property, plant and aouipsment

= Provision made for pensions and gratuitios

- Deferred agency fes income rmeognsed

- {ImcomealiLoss from hank deposite snd nvestments

= Galn on disposal of property, plant and sguiprmaent
Oiperaling cash flows befone working capial changas

Changs in opemabng assets and Rabilibes
- Dabtors, prapayments and other debtors
- Agency and other deposits
- Creditors and accrued operaling expenseas
Payments ior pensiong and gratuities
Deferred agency fees received
Cash generated fromdused in) operabions
Contribution fo Consolldated Fund

Mot cash generated fromyused in) operating activities

Gash Mows Trom imvesting aclivities

Purchase of proparty, plant and aguipment

Proceads from disposal of proparty, plant and equipment
Inferest racaivad

Dividend received

iMat paymend)Gross procesds from purchasedsale of financial aesets
designated as af fair value through profit or loss 8 inception

Mat receipts for sale and purchase of financial assets hald for trading
Purchase ol availabla-lor-gaks fingncal asgats

Procepds from disposal of seallabie-for-sale financlal assats

Mot cash provided by investing activities

Gash fiows from finencing activities

Funging for govemmant projeats

Payments mada for infragiruciural projacis-in-progress
lEsue of sharas

Dividands pad

Het cash used in financing activitlas

Met increase in cash and cash equivalsnts
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of financlal year
Gash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 10

T ALCOFMEATT g rolas Frm an inegral pan of ks naroinl Slemenis.

20049/2010 200a/2005
8000 S'000
131,241 [BT E73)
B.825 B.i7a
520 441
3,252 {2,E52)
(100,737} g5 426
(7 )
38,600 48,2719
6,052 4,635
g1 3,491
2,081 (101,177}
733y {184}
1,214 2,508
33,401 [50,343)
- {5, 106}
33,401 55, 4545)
(14,883 16,313
T &5
11,071 17,124
4,812 9465
(107 BaT) 780,058
306,920 26,578
(128,120 (72,918)
8,101 141,000
170,170 J65 951
2,407) {5,221)
(25,088 [36, 34)
- 1
- {1,051}
(88, 506) [#3,127)
105,065 287,363
452 454 185,085
E5T.519 45% 454
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the firancial year ended 31 March 2010

Thesa notas form an integral part of and should be rmad in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statemants.

1

GENERAL

The Uiroan Redevelopment Authority ithe “Authority”) s a statutory board established in
Singapaore under the Urban Redovwsloprment Autbonity Act (Gep. 340). B Is domicled in
Singapaore. The address of the Authorty's registered office i as folows:

45 Maoveall Boar
The URA Cantre

Sngapors 069118
The principal activities of the Authority are
(@) planning and facilitating the physical development of Singapaore;
(2] seling and managirg land for the govarnment;
(c) mamaging car parks;

[0} wnderisking dewvelopment projects on behalf of the government end other
crganisations; and

(g} camying out such other functions as imposed upon the Authonty by or under the
Urban Redovalopmment Auhory Aol iCap. 3400 oF any o1her wWitten [,

These financial statements are presented in Singapore Daoller, which & the Authordty's
funclional currancy.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of sccounting and adoption of new and revised standards

The Tnancial Siaemenis have been prepaned under thi NSIoRcal COSLCOmention, excet
as disclosed in sooounfing polcies below, and are drawn up in accomdance with the
provisicna of the Urban Redevelopment Auwthornty Act (Cap. 340) and Stetutory Board
Financial Feporting Standards (“3B-FRS").

In the curent financial year, the Authority has sdopted &l the new and revieed SB-FRS:
and Interpretations of S3-FRS MINT SB-FES™) that are relovant to its cperations and
gffective for gnnual periods beginning on or after 1 Aprl 2002, Tha sdoption of these new
and revisad SB-FRSe and IMT SB-FRS= does not reault in changes to the Authonity's
accounting polices and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the cument
or prior yaars except s disclosed balow and in the notes 1o the financial statements,

EB-FRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statement (Revized)

SB-FAS 1 has introduwced terminclogy changes {inchuding revised titkes for the financial
statermants) and changes in the format and content of the financial stetermants. In
addition, the revised Standard requires the presentation of @ thind statement of inancial
pocition at the boginning of the cadiosl comparstve porod procontod if tho anbity
appliss new accounting policles retrospectively or makes refrospeciive restatements or
reclassifies items in the financial statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cantinuad]

2.1 Basis of accounting and adoption of new and revised standards (caniinued)]

Amendments to SB-FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Improving
Diaclosures about Financial Instrumeants

The arnendments to SB-FRS 107 expand the disclosuns requined in respect of Rirvadu
measurements and lgudity sk, The Authority has eectad rot to provida comparative
information for these expanded disclosues in the current year in accordance with tha
traneticnal redefa aferad in thees amandmants,

2.2 Financial instruments

Finangial asgets and firancal liabiliies are racognised on the Authodty’s Statermant ol
Financial Position whan the Authority becomes a party to the contractusl provisions of
the matrument.

(@ Financial aszats

Inveetmante ara recogniaed and de-recognisad cn a frede date whena the purchasa
or eale of an invastment iz urdar 8 sontract whoss terms reoquirs dalivery of the
irmeestrent within the Limelrame eslabdshed by e markel concernad, and are
initially measdred al fair value plus rarsachon costs, axcapl 1of 1hoes financial
asseds clhsefied as at far valus through prafit o loss which 2re initally measursd
at fair value.

Other fimancial assets are dassifed into the following specified categanes: financal
assels “at far vaius thraugh profit or loss”, *avalable-foe-sale” financial as:ss and
“ioans and receivables’. The classification depends an the nature and purpose of
finamcial seeets and b determined at tha tima of Initlal recognition.

i Financial asssts at fair vakua through profit or kes

The Authorty's Iveestments in markelabe securties and forward foreign
exchange condracie ars clagsified in the “inancil asssts at fair value through
profit or loas” category. This category has two sub-categodes: “financial
assess hekd for trading”, and those “designated ag 1ai value through profit or
loss at inception”. A financial asset is classiied as held for trading F acquired
principally for the purgoeso of solling in tho sho omn, Financial assats
ciesignated as al fair value through profit or bss at inception are thosa that
are managed and their performances are evaluated on a fair value bass, in
accondance with a documented Autharity's invesiment strategy. Assets in this
catagory are cossified as curmnt assets § they are either hald for trading or
arg expaciad 10 be realised within 12 months afar the and of the epoarting
paniod, The designafion of fnancial aszets at fair vakes through profit or loss
is imevocable,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

2.2 Financial instruments (continwed)

ia) Financial assets joantinsed)

i}

(i

(i)

Loans and receivehles

Loans and recelvables are non-dervative financial assets with fxed or
detarminabia paymants thal are rol quoted in an active markat, They ae
included n cerrenl assels, excapl those maturing mone than 12 months after
the end of the repoding period which are classified as non-current aseels,
Loans and mcafvalbbes ang chassined within “Cash and cash eguivaianis”, “Stal
ans” and “Debiors, accrued interest, prepayments and other debtors™ on
the Statement of Financial Position, Loams and recaivables are measured at
amortizad Cosl using the efectve interesl mathod ess impenment. Intanast is
recognized by applying the effective inferest rate method, except for shod-taam
receivables whan the recognition of interast would be immatarial.

SAugiliebie-for-ssle financial agssts

Availatrhe-for-sae financial assets am non-derbathes that ame either designated
in this category or not classified in any of the other categones. Assets in this
cateqory are claseified as currant asaets if they are expected to be realeed
withim 12 months after the end of the eparting period.,

Impairment af fnancial asseis

Financial aseatz, other than those at falr vale through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impaimment &t the end of aach reporing pericd.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence thal, as a result
of ane or more evanis that ccowmed after the initisl recogrition of the financial
assel, the estimated luture cash flows of the invesiment have Deen mpacted,

For financial assats camed at amartised cost, the emaunt of the impaiment is
the difference betaween the assaed’s l:-nm.-ing amaunt and the FIMEE'I‘I wialue af
estimated future cash fiows, discountsd at the ongingl effectve interest rats,

The camyng amaunt of e frarcial aeeol iz educed by tha impairmant lose
directly for all financil assets with the meception of frade recevables whers the
carmying amount & reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable iz uncolactible, it i writien off aganst the alowance sccount.
Subseouent recovaries of amounts previoushy writben off are credted against
the allowance account. Changes in the camying amount of the alowancs
account ane recagrised in profit or loss,

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued

2.2 Financial instruments fcandineed)

[ Financial assels foomiinued
i) Impairment of fnancial assets [conlinued)

vl

With the excaption of avaiable-for-zale equity mstrumeants, if, in a subsequen
poncd, the amaunt of the impairment loss decreases and the decreasae can
b relatad chjgctively 10 an event oooumng aner the Impalmment 1053 Was
recogrized, the prevously ecognised impaiment oas s revarsad theowugh
profit or loas to the extent the camdng amount of the investment at the date
the mpairment & reversed doas not excead whet the amortised cost would
hawa baen had the impairment not been recognisad,

In respect of availeble-for-sale aguity inatrumenta, any subeaquaent Ncragse in
fal value atler an impairmeant loss, i recognised directly in other comprehensivg
income.

Dergcaqniton of inancial assels

The Autharity derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the casgh fiowes from the gsset expire, or & fransfars the financial asaat and
substantadhy all the risks and rewards of awnarship of the asset o another
entity. If the Authority neither fransfers nor retaing subsiantialy &l the risks
and reweards of ownership and contfinues to contral the transfemred asaet, the
Authonty recogrises its refained inderast in the azsst and an associatad iabiliby
for amounts it may have la pay, I the Aulbority retaing substantially all the
risks and rewards of cwnership of a fransterred financial asset, the Authority
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a colateralsed
Earrowing for the procesds recaved.

Mo Firancial labiliies and equity nsiruments

m

Classiication as dabt or aquity

Financial lighilties and equity instruments issuad by the Authority gre classified
accordng to the aubatance of the confractual amangements antered inta and
the dedritions of a financial labilty and an equity instrument.

Crreditors

Creditors ane intally measured at Talr valug, and &re sudsequently measuned at
amorised cost, w=ing the sffective interast method,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES jcontinued)

2.2 Financial instruments (contmuea)

bl Finanacial Eabiities and aguily instrormants fconhrued)

#]

(i) Equity mstrumonts

Sharas izsued 1o Minigter of Finance are classifiad as aguity.  Any incramantal
costs directly altributabls to tha issuancs of new sharms are deductad against
trie capflal ascount,

vl Derecognition of financial kabilties

The Authoriy demecognizes financlal labilites when, and only when, the
Authority’s oblgationa ane discharged, cancelisd or thay expire.

Fair vakes of inancial assals and Mancial &bdlhes

The fair valss of curment financial asssts and lisbiltias, camed al amotizad Gasl
apprmomato thalr camying amounts,

The fair walues of finencial instuments ofther than wnit trusts are based on guatad
market prices at the end of the reporting perod, The guoted market price wsed for
financial Esets heid by the Authcrly B the curment ed price; the approprate guoted
market price for finarcial lizkiites i= the current ask price.

The fair value of the unit frusis is determined based on the funds’ net asset values
prowided by the furd managers st the last market day of the financial veer. The net
assat values approximate the fair valus as tha furnd comprise mainly quotad aquitias
and bonds whose far values ars based on the guoted market prices at the |est
market day of the financial year.

The fair value af forwvard eechanga curency confracts is determinesd using forward
foreign exchange market rates at the end of the reporting period,

The Authority classiias fair value measuremants usEing a far value hiarachy that
reflects the signifcance of the inpuls used in making the measurameants, The fair
valua hiaranchy haa the following leveda:

| guotsd prices junadjustad) n active markels for identical assets or labiities
[Lawed 1);

il inpuis otber than quotad prices includad within Lensal 1 that s obesrceible for
ine assel of liahiity, either drecty (I8, 85 prices| or indirectly e, derived from
prices] {Level 2); and

2

2.2

2.3

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instrumenis [conninued)
o] Fair value of fnancial assets and finandcial iabilities (condinusd)

fiij mpute for the s==et or lizbilty that are not based an abservable market data
juncibsarvable inputs) (Leval 3).

Financial instrumenis measured at fair valus

Tatal Lesenl 1 Loyl # Lesnzl 3
£'000 S'000 5000 5000
Finanicial Assats
I March 2010

Financial assats al fair value

through profit or loss deGRE 106,336 454002
Fosailable-for-saka invastmenss g, 0 - 49880 -
Total S12818 106338 406292 -

Financial LamMlities

FAnarcial liablkties at fair valua
through profit or loss {2 Bai) = (2,846

Total 2,846 = (2,644 -

Thers were no fransfers between Leval 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during
the financial year.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Forward foreign exchange contracts are clessified as financlal assstafablities at far
value through profit or lozs. A forward foreign exchange contract & inftially recognisad
at fair valug on the date it is entered into and is subsequenthy re-maasured af fair valua,

Changes in fair vahue of forsard foreign exchange conracts are included in the profil or
loss in the financlal vear in which the changes in fair value anse,

Operating leases

Leasas of agsals whers substantially all risks and rewands ncidental 1o osmership ang
retained by the lessore are cleseifisd ag cperating leases, Receipie and payments made
uncier cparating lessas ane recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis aver
e period of tha easa.

Apseie leapsd out undar ocperating keass ame includad in property, plant snd
equipment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

ia) Mezzurament

Fropeny, plant and equipment are Inially recognised at cost and subsequenily
caTied 2t cost less accumulaied daprecistion and accumulated mparment loeses,

The cost of an fem of property, plant and eqguipment initialy recognized noludes
it= punchase price and any cost that is direcily attributable to bringing the assst o
the location and condion nacessary for it 1o be capable of cperating in the manmes
intendad by the Authorty,

i) Depreckation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-ling mathod 1o glocate their depreciakie
rmaunis owvar ther estimatad usetul Ives as follows;

Useful Ives

Lamgshakd Croar the lases penod of HE wears
Bulldinga [including coverad car parks) 50 years

Plart and machinary installed in buikdings 10 to 20 years

Surface car parks 5 years

IT equiprment 3105 years

[ther assets 3 1o 10 years

Dier assels consst of Sngapore Gity Gallery exnibits, molor vehiches, office
fumiture, fitings and fixhures, ofice equipment, machinery and other sguioment,

Mo deprecigtion is provided on projacte-in-progress.

The residual vales, estimeted useful ves and depreciation method of propsey,
plant and squipmant ane reviewsd, and adjusted as appropriate, at tha and of each
reporting peficd, The effects of any revsions ame included i profit o loss when the
changes arizse.

) Submorjuen! adpandiurg

Subsequent expenditure relating o property, plant and equipmant thal has alresdy
been recognised B added 1o the camying amourt of the asset when it is probable
that future aconomic banafits associatad with tha ibeme, will fiow o the Authoty
and the cost of the Eem can be measured reliably, All oiher repar and manienanc:s
Bxpense are recognisad in profit or loss when incurned,

2

25

2.6

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES jcortinuad)
Property, plant and equipment {continued)

d] Dispoasl

On disposal of anitem of propary, plant and eguipment, the diflerencs between 1he
dizpoaeal procesds and its camying amount is recognised in profit or loes.

impairment of assets

Al tha and of each reparting pedod, the Authority reviews the carmang amaunis of ils
a=sets to determing whathar there s any indication that those assets have sufiered an
rpaiment oss, I any such ndication edasts, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impaiment lbss (if any). Where it is
not poasible o eetimaete the recovarable amount of an individusd a=sat. tha Authority
gelimates the recowerable amount of the cash-gendraling unil 0o Which the assal
belongs

If the mocveratla amount of an assal jor cash-geranaling unil) i astmated 1o be lass
trian it2 camying amount, the camyng smount of the azest (or caeh-gensrating wnit) i
reduced to s recoversble amount, An impaimment knss B ecognised immeadiately in
prodit or loss.

Where an impaimeant loss iz subzequenty reversed, the camyng amount of the assed
|or cazh-generating unif) is increased to the revised astimate of its mooverable amount,
but s that the incressed camydng amount does not exceed the camang amount thad
would have been detemrined had no rnpaiment loss been recognised for the assed
|or cash-ganarating unit) in pricr years. A revarzal of an mpaimmant loss is recogrised
mmediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisons are recognised whan the Authority has a present obligation legal or
constructive) as a rosull of a past evant, it iz probable that the Authority wil be required
o satile the obligation, and & relabie estimate can be made of the emaunt of the
nbligation.

Pravisian for persions and gratuites is made for the payment of pension banefits to
pensionatie offizers under the provsions of the Pensions Aot (Gap, 225 and 1o gigibie
staff emploved under the confract schema.

The cost of pensicn benefit due to pensionable officers is determined based on the
expected peyouts to e made by the Authority in respect of services rendansd by thasa
pansionable officers up to the end of the reparting period.
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2

2.8

2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuesd)

income recognition

Incorme comprises the fair value of the conslceration eceived or receivable for the esle
of goods and rendering of servcas in the ordinary course of the Authodty's actvities.
Incoma i presented, net of gocds and services tax, rebates and discounts.

i) Randering of services

Revenue rom rendering of services, including income from development control,
agency ard oonauttancy fees and moovery of costs s meognised during thae financial
year in which the serdcss are rendared, by referencs 1o complation of the specific
ranzaction azsessed on the basis of the actual servica provided as a propartion af
the 1ot sendces 10 bo poarfommed,

i} Perkirg feas and related charges

Senzon perking fees are accounted for on & time proportion bases, Other pasking
fes and refated charges am accounted for when transacled.

2 Inemest income

Intarast ncoma is recogrnEed o a lime proparan bases weing the affactive mlans
rrithod,

i) Desdand incomea
Davidend incoma ia recognised when tha right to meeiva payment is established.

i8] Fantal income

Rantal income from oparating keasas on proparty, plant and aquipmeant is racogriasd
on & straight ing basis over the leasa term.

Employes compensation
(@) Dedined contrioution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Authority peys fised contributions into separate entities such as the Cerntral

Provident Fund on & mandsiony, confraciual or voluntary Casis,  The Authonty
has no futher payment chligation: once the contributions have been paid. The

Awutherity’s contribufions ere recogrised in profit or loss when they ara dus.

243

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued]
Employes compensation [condinued)
o) Employee eave antitiemant

Employvee entitlemenis to annual leave are recognised when they acorue o
eTpioyess. A provision & made or the estimated Babiity Tor annual leave as a resull
of senvices rendered by employess up to the end of the reporting period.

2.10 Foreign currency fransactions and translation

211

Transactons in a cumency other than the functional curmency {“foreign curmency”) are
tranelated info the functional cumency using the exchenge rates at the dates of the
transactions. Curmency translabon differences from the settlermend of such ransactions
and from the transiaticn of monetary assets and Rbiitles cenominated In foregn
currencies at the closing rates at the end of the reporting pericd are recognised in profit
or kass.

Cazh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand ard deposits with financial institutions
which are subjact to an nsignificant risk of changes in value.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTIMG JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATIOM
UNCERTAINTY

The pregparaton of financial statemants in conformilywith SB-FRS recuiras managamant
to exarcese judgerment in the process of apalving the accountirg pobcies, I also reguires
the use of accounting estmates and assumptions that affect the epoted amounds o
assets, liabiiies, iIncomeand expenditureand dsclosureof contingent assets and lablities
in the financizl statementz. Alhough these estimetes are based on management's best
knowledge of cumant evants and actions, actual results may ullimatsly diffier from thosa
eslimates. Significant areas of estimation and maragement judgemant with regard 1o
the estmation of usefll e for the property, plant and equipment are as disclosed in
Motes 2.5 [b) and &.

FINAHCIAL RISKS AMD GAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

The main rigks anging from the Autharity's actvities ane market rigk [including cumency,
interest rate and price risks], credit risk and boudity risk. The ecovery of the financial
rharhets during the curment year has contbributed 1o the impraverment in the market values
of the Authority's financial assets and net surplus for the fnancial year ended 31 March
2010, There has been no chanos to the Autharity's exposuns to theas financial risks or
the marner in which it manages and measunes e risk,
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4  FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT fcontinuea)

4.1 Market risk

(=

L]

Foraign currancy risk

The Authority has exposure to forsign exchange nsk as a result of ivesimentz in
foreign currancy denominated assets and liabilites. The main forsign cumency for
those invosiments & the LIS Dollar, Forgion qurmancy confracis an used to hodge
foreign exchange aexposura as and when required. Disclosue of significent fnancal
azuals and labilfies denomirdalad n cumencies Gther than Singapor Dol&ar &
daclosed in Matos 0 and 10 of the finanoal slatomonts.

Sansii s
A 10% waakaning/strangthoning in the Singapone dollar against the US Colar with

all other variabies Deing held conatant is expected to incresse/decrsase the net
surplus of the Authority by 53,912,000 (31 March 2009 - $7,665.000).

hManagementis oftheview that the aboee sensitivity analysiz may ot be representative
ol the inharant fomeign exchanga risk as vear end axposure may not reflact the actual
axpoaura and crcumastances during tha year.

Irterest rate rigk

Az the Authority maintang most of ils cagh and cash oguivalents in foed rate
instruments and does not have any interest bearing liabiities, its exposune D interast
rate rigk is ingignificant,

Price risk

The Authority is exposaed o prce rigk arsing from financial assels at fair value throwgh
prafit or loss and avalablk-for-sala financeal assats,

Furihar detais of these inwestmenis can be found in Mote 9 o the fnancial
slatemeants.

Sanzitviy analyais
In raspect of fimancial assets at fair value through proft or loss, excapt bonds, o
prices increased or decrazed 5% with all other vanables being held constart, the

Authority's net sunplus for the year endsd 31 March 2010 would increszaddecraase
by 13,132,000 (31 March 2008 : $17 .458,000).

4

4.1

4.2

4.3

FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT (continuad)

Market risk {continued)
Sanstiity ahale’s fcontinued)

In respect of bords classfised as haeld for treding, if the mberast rate decreseesd/
mCreased by 50 Dass point, and all other variables being hekd constant, Lhe
Authority's net surplus for the vear ended 37 Merch 2010 would increase/decrease
by 4,222 000 (31 March 2008 : §5,323,000).

In respect of avellable-for-sale financlel assets, no sensithvity has been prepered as
management is of the view that money market funds are not subjected to significant
price rizk,

Cradit risk

Craclit rigk anses from ransactons with debtares and financial institutions. The rmaximum
exposure at the and of the financial vear, in refation to sach dass of fnancial asset iz the
fair value af those agseis in the Statement of Financial Posibon,

Cash and cash eguivalents, unit trests, equities and available-for-zala financial
irvastrents are pacad or tran =&ctad With high credit guaity financal Insttutions. Bonds
held for investment are of at least a Mocdy's grading of Baa3 or its aousvalent

There is no significan] concentration of Gredil risk excepl a5 dsclossd in Mole B whera
the major customers are government bodies, There is also consistent monifonng of the
credit qualiy of the customers.

Liquidity risk

In managing the iquidity risk, the Authonty ensures that it maintains sufcient cash and
figdbilty in funding to fnence its operations,

Tha folowing table datais the remaining contractusl maturty of the Autharitys financal
liabilies [including dedrrabive inandial liabiites). The lable has been dreem up bassd on
the undiscountad cash lows of financial REabiltes basad on the eadest date on which tha
Authority can be requined to pay. The table nchades both nterest and principal cash fiows,
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FINAMCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT [confinusd)

Ligueidity risk [conimmed)

31 March 2010

Apency and other deposis

Cradilars and abaried aperaling axpanses
Forwand formgn exchange Conracts
Prowision for penséons and gratuibios

31 March 2008

Agency and other depoeits

Creditars and accrued aperating sxpenses
Farward forsign exchangs conracts
Prosvision for pensions and grafuities

On demand or Batwesn 1
within 1 yaar and 5 years Total
00 000 S'000
18,21 - 18 94
B, 774 3,002 a4, 77ra
az 2,704 & B
3,418 3419
102,797 8188 111,882
19,032 - 10,033
THATE 3,002 81,571
840 B40
- 3,632 5,632
B8 2l 6,534 104,878

Capital risk management policies and objectives

The capital structure of the Authorty consiate of capital account and accumulatad

surplus. The Authoritys overall strategy emains unchanged rom &st financial vear,

PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Lassehald Plant ard  Surface m Offer  Projects-in
lend  Bullding= machineny carparks aquipment pENSis  -pORaRE Tivtal
$'000 $000 §'000 $'000 $000 §000 $'000 $'000
At 1 April 2009 153,151 116,830 ez 30,429 B3.730 14,755 711 419,737
Additions - - - aa 1.120 223 17 568 18670
Disposals/write off . - 5,273} (E.&1E) (3,028 : [14,025)
Al 31 March 2010 53157 116,690 o e JE 08 B ) 1,842 18300 424682
Accumutated
dapraciation
At 1 Aprl 2009 17,087 31,660 28,958 34 3dd SE 873 13,450 - 1Bisaz
Depraciation chargs 1,581 2,634 304 1,483 2,532 an B.525
Dispomala/write off - - - {5,373} i5,616) (3,036 [14,025)
At 31 March 2010 186738 34794 28,282 30,454 5Z.838 10,785 - 176,382
Met book valie
At 31 March 2010 134,473 82,545 1,840 3,840 6,345 1,167 18,300 248,300
Leaschald Plantard  Surface m Other  Projects-in
land  Buildings: machiney  car paks  equipment agmels  -progress Total
ot 000 $000 S'000 F'000 $1000 F'000 00 £'000
At 1 Agril 2008 153,151 118,830 3,110 35,087 B1,851 14,962 2,048 415848
Additions . = 12 53 - a0y 3G 4,464 5652
Translers - - - 3380 2410 - (5,729 -
Disposalawrite off - - - - (1,336 (523 - i1.861)
At 31 March 2008 153,151 116835 ER R L] G, 7a0 14755 T ATRTaT
Accumubytesd
depreciation
At 1 Agril 2008 15516 22026 27553 a2 53 54950 13,528 173,546
Depraciation charge 1,581 2,834 1.405 1,381 2351 457 8,779
Dispasalavwrite off - - - - (1,338 (505 {1,643
At 31 March 2008 15087 31,560 28,558 i e A T 14,450 TBT 482
Mt book value
At 31 March 2008 136,054 85,170 2,184 5 DS 7.787 1,308 T11 238,288

Land parcels with reversionary interast from past sale of sites wera not includad in the above assets schadula as thess
are camed al 200 cosl as managemeant 8 of the view that it i diicult 10 religoly estimale the final future value of hese
lends whan thay are revertad back to the Authority in due course. Az at 31 March 2070, the Authority had a total of
47 land parcats (31 Margh 2008 : 47 land parsels| of which 43 Bnd pancals (31 Margh 2008 | 43 land parcels) wees
with nominal value of $1 each, The value of reversionery interest for the other 4 land parcels (31 Margn 2009 4 lend
parcals) was astimated at $8,011,000 (31 March 2009 ; $5,772,0000. The Authonty's in-hausa projassional vauer
haeg oetimatod the waluo, based on cument market conditions, by discounting the fubum value of tho 4 land pareale to

its oresent value based on the remaining numiker of years o the unexpired |Bnd sale tenune,
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INFRASTRUCTURAL PROJECTS-IN-PROGRESS

The Authority hae taken on @ more progctive role to make Singapore mone attractve
and compedithee Dy Tagilating the develionment of siralegic aress through maong acive
value enhancing mitistives. The project costs incumed by the Authanty are recogresed
o an asset on the Authority's Statement of Financial Position as s accurmukated
surplus s used 1o fund these projects. On completion of the Infrastructurel proj@cts, the
a=sats wil ba franafermed to the designetad goverrmeant agenciss as & confribution fo
tha govemment, Wwith 8 comesponding recuction against the Autharly's accurmulated
SUrplus,

31 March 31 March

010 H0e
5000 000
Bagnning ol fimancial yaar 85,965 47,582
Addilians 88,5568 43 BTE
Trarsfar upon sompletion - {25,495)
End ol financisl yEar 154,521 65,865
Prasantsd as:
Current - 1o be iransderresd within 12 moaths 153,802 B3.281
PMon-cumeant - 1o be transferad after 12 months 628 2,684
154,521 65,65
STAFF LOANS
31 March I March
2010 H0g
5000 £000
Current;
Mol laber Than ane wear [Mate B) 10 4
Man-Current:
Bataesn o and I'n'd-'hm 5 -

7

STAFF LOANS [continued)
Staff lnans had iha folowing weightsd averege effective interaat rates:

31 March 31 March
2010 2009

51afl loans 4,25% 4.26%

DEBTORS, ACCRUED INTEREST, PFREFAYMENTS AND OTHER DEETORS

31 March 31 March
2010 2009
5'D00 £'000
Coeraling deblors a1 3«00 21,238

Recoverables

- agency projects 12,351 16,000
= pihaers a0 228
Acorued Interest and dividend recalvablas 2,TH 3.402
Prapayments 2,605 2,996
Recalvables for sak of Investmants 7058 3,405
Cither debtors 437 hab
Staff lnens (Mota 7] [} 4
56,842 48,323

Included in the above ara operating debiors and recoverables relating 1o agency works
undieriaken on behat of Ministry of Naticnal Development amounting to 338,212,000
{31 March 2000 : $33 332 000,

Th Suthority's debiors are mostly government agencies, other stalutony boanss and its
parent ministry, Ministry of Maticnal Development. A miajority of the Authority’s operating
dabitors and racoverablas that sre naither past dus nor impaired i due from the Mireatry
af Mational Developmant, The Grecit period given 10 the Authoritys dediors s 50 days
{31 March 2008 ; 30 days).
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DEETORS, ACCRUED INTEREST, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER DEBTORS

fcantinusd)

The ageing enalysis of operaling oebtors past due and not impalred |2 as shown below.
Mo alkwance has been mada on these debtors as management beleves thal there
has not been sigrificant change in credit qualty and the amounts are still considaracd

racoverabls.

Past dues O - 30 days
Past dua 31 - B0 days
Past dus 61 - B0 days

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Financial agsstalinbiltiss] are measured in sccordance with the accounting policies as

saf out in Motes 2.2 and 2.3,
Financial assetsliabilies) include the following:

Financial asseis at fair value through profit or loss
Chuabad marlkalakble s rilios:

= bafds

- unit trusts

- ety shares

Forwerd Tomign exchange contracha

Awailable=for-sale financial assnis
Maney market fund

Financial liakilties at fair walus through profit or loss
Farsard forsign exchange contracts

31 March 31 Manch
2010 2008
5000 $'000

- 2,285
15 14

- 183
5 2.0

31 March 31 March
2010 2009
000 2000

159,963 222 354

166,306 260,576

106,326 79,585

43 323

462,628 571,638

49,990 18,570

512,818 581 808
(2,848 B840

509,712 591,788

&)

It

[=H

()

EH

o OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) fcontinued)

Al ther end of the: reporting pericd, financial assets’abiibes) at far value through
profit or Inss comprised financial assets/ishiites) classified as held for frading
and designatad es et inception of $341, 747,000 and £118,036,000 respactvaly
{31 March 2008 - $558,682,000 and $12,509,000 raspactively).

Included in guated marketable seourites were bonds, which had a weighted average
effective interest rate of 2.08% per annum {31 March 2009 : 1.63% per annumi).

Foreign exchange contracta ere uaad o hedge foreign excnenge risks asdsing from
IrestmEnts In 0me quoted Donds and equities. The nokonal pANcIpEl amolnts
af cutstanding foreard fomeign exchanos contracts of the Authoety as at 31 March
20 is F1E4,577,000 [31 March 2008 ; 574,218,000,

Total outstanding foreign axchange confracts compriga mainly contracts invaking
US Dodar and Bura, with national pringioals which amounted to 5108,021 ,000 and
$24,415,000 respacively as at 31 March 2010 (31 March 2009 © US Dodar and
Japaness Yon of 356 301,000 and 55,485 000 respectvaly).

At 31 March 2010, the sefflernent dates on forward foreign exchange contracts
ranged between 0.99 and 53,69 months (31 Manch 2009 : betwesn 0,05 and 1.61
manthgl,

Investments denominated in foreign currencies amounted 1o $217,329,000 as al
31 March 2010 (31 March 2009 : $142 107 000). The foraign currency exposurs
ansas primarly from the Authority’s irvestrmant in wnit frusts, global bonds and

equity shares olwhich apprdmately 84% and 105 {31 March 2009 ;| aporoximataly
0% pnd 2%) are denomingted in US Doller and Euro respectively Tha remaining
irvestmants are held in warious currencies which ara individually not significant.

Thefinancial aseets at fair valua through profit oroes inclded an imestrment partfolio
managed internaly amounting 1o $118,036,000 (31 March 2009 © $12,509,000),
The portfolic comprised mainly corporate and agency bonds, Singapore and foreign
qovernment securtes and other statutory boads” bonds.
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8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES) jcontinuad)

M Financial assetakabilitas) maneged by extemal fund managers comprsed the

fobowing:

Financzial sseste/{Habiites) at fair value threugh
profit or loss

Cuoted marketabls sacuritias.
- bonds
- wnit trusta
- aquity shares
Forwerd foreign sxchanga contracts

Available-Tor-sale financial assets
Mioney market Tund

Other asseinliabilities]”
Fixas depoats
Bank belamces

Interest, dvidend recaivablas and recoverables
Receivables for purchasa of invasimants
Payables for purchase of investments
Accrued expensas and other payables

* Theseiterrs have been neluded inthe papactive curment aesets and |ailites cateqorias

in tha Staterment of Financisl Position.

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the Staterment of Cash Fows, cash and cash equivalents compnsed

tha Tellewding:

Caah and bank balances

Fixed depeaita with banks

Cash halancas and fieed deposits hald by
furd maragens

Crash and cash egquivalents par
Staemant of Gash Flows

31 March 31 March
2010 2005
£'000 5000

78,138 209,398
166,300 208,570
106,325 T8.585

(24} 130

S AT 658 689

43,9280 18,870
k) 578659

< 1,900

3,963 2453
az3 1.895
7,058 3805
18,528 3,885
301) (168)
5,014 5,588
08 TE1 ERA D48

31 March 31 March
2010 200%
§'000 §000

18,866 1,307

534,680 447404
3,063 1,653

557,518 452,454

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continuad)

"

i8] Incuded in cash and bank balances was an amouwnt of £13 539 000 [31 March
2009:; 135,000} relafing tocollectiors on bahalf of Ministry of Mational Development
and other government agencies, and classifod as pan of “Creditors and accruad
aperating expanzes” (Note 13) and *Agency and alher daposits”,

iby The weighted svarage effective inferast rate of the fued depoeis ae &t 31 Manch
210 was 0.44% per annum (31 March 2009 ; 0.85% per annum) and kor a
remaining tenune pericd angng from 1 day to 188 days (31 March 2008 ;1 day to
234 days),

] Cash and cash equivalents denominaled i foreign curmances amounied o
B228,000 (37 March 2009 : 5505,000) and were dencrninatad mainky in LIS Dollar,
Tarwan Dodlar and Koraan Wan {31 March 2000 : US Dolar and disn Rupes),
The cash in foreign curencies were held in rslation to the Authonty's Investment in
quoted equity sharas and bonds.

DEFERRED INCOME

This reprasents the portion of agency fees raceivad on salko of sites which ane defarrad
for services to be performed in fubure finencial years.

31 March 3 Mamch
2010 2009
$000 000
Presented as:
Curent - to be recagnised within 12 monihs 3,084 5,202
Mnn-curmant - in ha reengnisad aftar 12 montha 1,745 3825
4,839 &, 777

kovements in deferred income account were &3 follows:

3 March 3 March

2010 2004

D00 £'000
Baginmirgg ol linencal yeee & TTT G861
Income defered for financial year 1314 2608
Transfer to profit or loss (3263 (2,662)
End of finencial year 4,838 6,777

B3
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PROVISION FOR PENSIONS AND GRATLITIES

WMovemeants in provizion for pensions and graiuities ware ae follows:

341 March 31 March

2010 200

5000 &'000
Bagiwing of fimancal yesr 3,532 3T
Prowialon mads curing financial yaer 580 4
Provision wilised during financial year (73 (168
Ercd of financial vaar 3ATH IEE
CAPITAL ACCOUNT

The Dalance in Mis FCooUnt Mepresanis:

tal  thavalue of cartain leasshold land of the former Urban Ranawel Departmesnt under
thes Mimisbry of Matona Development and some adjacent state and vested i the
Autharty when it was establshed;

(b the net Dook valug of movabls aseels transtered from the lamear Planning
Departmant and the Research and Stafistics Linit wnder the Minisiry of Mational
Devglopment upon their amalgamation with the Authority on 1 Septembsse 1583,
and

] 1,000 sharas of ane dollar aach izswed to the Minister of Finance, & body corporate
incorporatad by the Minstee for Finance (Incorporation) Act (Cap. 183) for eguity
injection of $1,000 on 23 February 2009,

PARKING FEES AND RELATED CHARGES

Included in perking fees and related charges is income from the sale of car park coupana,
The Authority operates the common car park coupon syslem jeinily with Housing and
Development Board (*HDB") from 1 September 1981, The total annual coupon sales
proceads B ghared betwean the Autharity and HOE beesed on managements basgt
estimate of the usage of Coupons in the car parks managed by each party using an
agrenr shadng formula, Fach party's shae of the coupon sales procesads 8 sunject
ta adjustent that may arise frarm joint Goupon incoeme surveys camied oul ot pariadic
Imtervals that are mutually agresd by both pariies,

12

13

CONTRIBUTION TO COMNSOLIDATED FUND

The confributicn to the Coneoldated Fund iz made in accordance with Section {3)a)
ot the Statutory Corparations [Loninbotons to Uonsolicated Fund) Act {Lap, 3194),
Contribation for the financial vear iz determined besad on 17% (200872009 @ 18%) of
the fet surplus for the Tnanoial yoear

There was nd contribution for the francal vear anded 371 March 2009 a3 a deficit was
incurrad for the nancial yaar, 1n arrbing at the contrication for the inancial yaar anded
a1 March 2010, e prior year deficit amount has been sef-off aganst 1he current vear
BUrpUS.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED OFERATIMNG EXPENSES

31 March 31 March
2010 2009
5000 000
Current;
Collactions on behall of Ministry of Mational Develogment
and govermmant agencies
- dievalapmant charges and packing baes 18414 5,300
= qlkusrs a1 2
Operating craditors and advamnces 24,637 32157
Accrusd oparating expansas and other crediters =240 22 528
Payabias for infrastructural projects-in-progress 8,335 12,163
Payablas for purchasa of imeestmanis 5,830 3,BE7
Payables for property, plant and equipment 5,103 1,126
3,774 7B,572
MNon-cument:
Operaling creditors &nd advances 3,002 3,002
3,770 1,574

Incheded in "Operating creditars and advancas” and “Accrusd aperating experaes and
oiher creditors” was an armount of 532,743,000 (21 March 2000 ; 542,582 000} ralating to
agency progEcts, Cther than coliecfions on teralf of Ministry of Matioral Development and
gowvernment agencies, the average cradit pedod & 30 days (31 March 2008 : 30 days),
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RECOVERY OF COSTS
2008/2010 20082008
5000 5000
Fecowary af costs from the gevernmeant
= plannng sarvices 35,025 20823
= stores and serdices 18,031 13,577
- agency cor parks 1,430 1,178
- Presanvation of Monwements Board 1682 161
T EAGET 44838

AGENCY AND CONSULTANCY FEES

Tha Autbvority sefs and manages land for the government, manages G parks and
undertskes deveicoment proects on behaf of the govermment and earns agency and
conaultancy fags from theae sendices provided.

INCOME FROM DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

The income from devalopment contral includes sale of approved plans, search fees,
ledgrnent fess and devaloprment application procesaing fess cobactad under subesdiary
legiglation made under the Fanmng Act (Cap, 232) and admimstrative charges or
planning clearance for projecis submitted by govemment departments and ministres.

EXFENDITURE ON MANPOWER
2009¢2010 SO0E/F003
5000 3000
Salares, alowances and bonus 65,050 6,719
Employer's contribition to Ceantral Provident Fund 5,580 6,534
Cither staff costs ar2 205
T2.512 T4, 183

Key management parsannel compensation is as follows:
200872010 2002009

5000 %000
Salaries and ofher shart-term employes benedits 4,127 4,148
Ermploper's eortribution to Central Provident Fund 11 a&
4,238 4231

Ky management rafers o emplovess designated as Group Directors and above who
have the authonty and responsiblity for planning, directing and controling the acthities
of the Authority.

21

TEMPORARY QCCUPATION LICENGE FEES

The Authoriby pays bemiporary oocupation ience fees o other stale-contmlled enfities
fer the usa of karnd bﬂuﬁgng ta tho Stato and athar statutory boards far korbsida and

aff-strest parking.

DPERATING SURPLUS
The foliowing items had been nduded in amiving at opasating surplus:
2008/ 2010 200857008
Charging: 000 £'000
Operafing lease experzas 005 i
Board mambers’ allowences 143 143
INCOMENLOSS| FROM BANK DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
20082070 HO0E2008
£'000 {000

Inforagt incoma from bank deposits 2.3 Ea87
Investments®
Loss)/Gain from sabs of nvestments (3,045 S.520
Devidand incoma 6,403 $.3482
Infenast incoms 54T7H 1FIT
Fair valus gaindloss) arising from financial asssts

- designated as at tair value through profit o oss 252 [125.231)

= hald for trading 104,528 111,460
Fareign exchangs {oss)'gain - ret 44, &ET) Ma1F
ImGomailags) Mo invesiments 00,320 it b
Furnd management expenses {1,505 (1838
Mt income(kass! fram bank depasils

and invastments 100,737 {05 426)

"Irastment comprse frenckl et at mie wlee theaugh prelii or loes and suniable-foe-cais francia
agzetg (Mobe B

FUNDING FOR GOVERNMENT PROJECTS

Tha Authority incurmed an amount of 53,407,000 (20082009 @ §5,331,000) to fund
govermmend projects which are implemented by government agencies under the
programmae o develop Singapore into a vibrant and distinctive global city. This amount
wag recorded as a reduction n the Authority's accumulated surplis during the firandcial
yezn as this is a contribution o the govermmenil

T



68

25 DIVIDEND PAID

For the financial year ended 31 March 2010, no diidand was paid (20082008 ;
1,000 D00 to thee Minister of Fioeces, o Lody corporste incos porated by e Minislen
for Financa {nconporation) Act {Cap. 183).

26 COMMITMENTS
ig] Capital commibments

Capital expendituras contracted for at the end of e reporiing period but not
recognisad i the financlal statements are analyeed a8 folows:

31 March 31 March

2010 2005
£'000 Fh000
Infrestructural projects A4, 144 i 064
Proparty, plant and eguipmant 18,754 -
Amaunts approved and contracted for 54,808 10,064

thi  Cinarating kease commitments - wham the Authorby B 6 eesor

The futwre minimum Base ecehabies under non-zancalable operading leases
conbrachad for at tha and of e reparing penod but rof recoonSed as raeamwalas,
aie analyesd as fokows:

31 March 31 Marnch

20 2009
S'000 31000
Mot later than one yasr 5,364 5,588
Batwean one and five yaals 118 5383
5,462 10,971

27 NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ANC INTERPRETATIONS

At the date of authorization of thase financial statements the following SB-FRS that s
refevant to the Authortty was issued but not efiective:

= INT 5B-FRS 117 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Ownars

Consequeantial amendments were also made to vanous standards as a resuli of these
ren renvised standands.

MMarsgament anticipaies that the adoption of the other SB-FRSs, INT S5B-FRSs and
amendments 1 SB-FRS thet were issesd bl effective anky in futuee periods will nol
hiane a material impact on the Snancial statemants of the Juthority in the period of their
imitial adopiion.

28 AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Thess financial statemants wens authonzed for Bsue by e Board on June 7, 2010,



